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Introduction
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[1} This is an application to review and set aside an arbitratln a_ﬁ\g;a%?made by

(2]

the third respondent (“the commissioner”) on 11 Dece __.:"%Og?aﬁmhich

_,“:f

the dismissal of the first respondent (“Mr Dlamini") \’?% o nd 10 be both

procedurally and substantively unfair. %
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Mr Dlamini was found guilty of mlsc%:)nduct ’en 21 July 2009 following a

aww cM

.......

disciplinary hearing and was,, dfjﬁssed on 4 August 20 9 He referred an

o

unfair dismissal dispute to‘@me’*@?hﬁmlch was arbitratelf on 24 November

2009. The applucag}awa%h represented by its Employee Rélations Specuanst

5
Mr Molefe, at the arbitr tu'fﬁg ‘hearing and Mr Dlamini was epresented by an
sz#f

official of: NUM,;,Mri‘Magilza Mr Molefe was based at th¢ applicant's head

:.;-;,_ )J?‘" g‘?
offlce and EWen an observer at the disciplinary hea{nng During the

: arbltratgen nelther party called any witnesses or presentdd evidence under

oagh.”f’Fhe commissioner found that Mr Dlamini’s disinissal was both
procedurally and substantively unfair and reinstated himlinto the same or
similar position with the same terms and conditions of employment as

previously enjoyed. Mr Dlamini was to resume his dutigds on 15 January

2010.




Arbitration award

e e s T

[3] The commissioner found:

“...the problem lies squarely with the Respondent En proving that the
dismissal of the Applicant was fair. This is mainly dud to the fact that the
Respondent has not brought in a single witness it hdd relied-on when it

imposed the dismissal sanction”.

TR

?uld be the best

evidence and hearsay evidence would only be a |s ble in exceptional

i
[4] The commissioner then concluded that evndencé@l%d

circumstances. He found that the ap%ght ﬁoﬁ‘discﬂarged the onus to

prove that Mr Dlamini's dismissal waswpg&g_edurally ang substantively fair
and recorded his difficulty i % 5 cci%ﬂn%the applicant's eviflence given that it
could not be tested faor |ts%§%ewy The commissioner foncluded that Mr
Dlamini “is therefore eg%ﬂ’ed Aﬁbe reinstated but full reinsfatement is denied

§ame for what led to his dismissal’.

[6] The applicant's grounds of review can be summarised as ollows:

5.1 The conclusion reached by the commissioner wasl not justifiable in

relation to the evidence led at the arbitration hearing;jand




9.2 The commissioner erred in finding the dismissal substantively and

procedurally unfair while finding that Mr Dlamini whs “partly to blame

for what led to his dismissal” without giving reasonslfor such finding.

Evaluation

ﬁgrove that the
';iz *

\ @ In determmmg
that the dismissal

nference and by

./»

even though that com}ggsnon % ﬁ"at the only reasonable

m

Evidence, (¢ eé para»325§~>l‘ﬁ’(hls favours the employer,

{7] Section 138(1) of the LRA permits commissioners the course of
arbitration proceedings to ‘deal with the substantial me ts of the dispute
with the minimum of legal formalities’. In undertaki g such task, a

commissioner is entitled to ‘conduct the arbitration in af manner that the




commissioner considers appropriate in order to determige the dispute fairly

and quickly'. Commissioners must however be guideq by at least three
considerations: the resolution of the real dispute betwgen the parties; as

expeditiously as possible; and in a matter which is fair.'

[8] An arbitration award stands to be set aside only if the award is unsupported

by any evidence, is based on speculation, is discq cled ©

be considered unreasonable?.

fﬁﬁ%%

[9] The record of proceedings clearly mdmates that%?h % tnegses were sworn in

Specialist. This was in sp:%é%fthg fact that there existeq material dusputes

£ B

T

of fact betweeni?tﬁé ‘nﬁ?ﬁ&sﬁmmg to the fairness of tife dismissal of Mr

Dlamini. 'Ig;g%aﬂphc?wrg, a large multinational compahy, chose to be

i APE&{;‘

representedgcat the arbitration proceedings by Mr Molgfe. It is not the
appl;;?t‘ %%e;}geihat Mr Molefe was unaware as to th manner in which
'a,;_bitra(?én proceedings before the CCMA are conducted for that he had no
expenence as to what was required of parties afpearing at such

proceedings and | am satisfied that, given his position} Mr Molefe could

reasonably have been expected to have known what wa1 required in order

to present the applicant’s case.

' CUSA v Tao Ying Metal industries & others 2009 (1) BCLR 1.
? See A Myburgh ‘Sidumo v Rusplats: How the Courts deal withiit’ (2009) 3D 1




[10]The approach adopted by Mr Molefe was to present tHe facts of the case

himself, without having been sworn in as a witness, apphrently on the basis
that he had been an observer at the disciplinary heari g and élthough he
did not have direct knowledge of the misconduct ail ed to have been
committed by Mr Dlamini. He called no further witnessés and at .no stage
applied for a postponement in order to allow him to do sq] even When asked

by the commissioner why he did not bring witnesses to tw;ﬂ"

i,
LiaN

/n ;ah @e’n,
[11] This Court is entitled to set aside an arbutra% fi

couid come on the available evndence @see Sn;iumo & angther v Rustenburg

"°1

Platinum Mines Lid & onh.egs}(ﬁ |1’$|S accordmgly not the [correciness of the
{ﬂ ?s- / i ik

comm:ssnoner rq%t the ,,onus of proot had not been

\\\\\

reasonable o e“aa the basss of the evidence available to him. The applicant

s F

- this Co&;t inwreview proceedings and claim that the errdr was that of the
cg'ri'\lmfg;ioner. This is all the more so where the applicanf is a multinational
company with experience in labour matters. Were tilis Court to find
differently, any applicant could attend at arbitration prpceedings, fail to

present material evidence relating to the dispute awd then claim a

* Record page 46 lines 5-7
*[2007) 12 BLLR 1097 (CC)




reviewable irregularity on the part of the commissioner in failing to call for

resolution system.

[12]This is not to say that it may, in fact, have beeh prudent for the

[13] The applicant's further ground of re\géﬁf‘?s thathe’

finding the dismissal substantlvely and @

L5 l!_ b=
‘- i l.

rally unfaif while at the same

time finding that Mr Dlamt %nly to blame fq what Ied to his
dismissal” without giying rea%?ns%for such finding. Asfa consequence of
this finding, the 56” “‘i‘rdg.g @neﬁenred Mr Dlamini full reingtatement. | am not

satisfied :%gtgmls%ggdlng was material to the conclusionfthat the dismissal

was proc II?pnd substantively unfair. lts only effeft was to limit full

m%w @@ﬁ

remsiate . eng,fgr Mr Dlamini, an issue with which he m y have elected to

”'*'take |ssue but did not. Accordingly, the award does{ not justify being

JW‘"

revuéwed and set aside on this basis.

[14]In the circumstances, 1| find that the conclusion freached by the
commissioner was justifiable in relation to the evidence bkfore him and that

the arbitration award does not fall outside of a band of ddcisions to which a
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reasonable person could come on the available evideqne. The application

to review and set aside the arbitration award accordinglytmust fail.

»t follow the result.

[16]The. appltcaae te review and set aside the arbitration adard issued under

CCMA ease number MP6877/09 is dismissed with costs.

71_.0\/\/7:\4/\.
K M Savage
Acting Judge
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Introduction

[1]  This is an application to review and set aside an arbitfation award made

by the second respondent (“the commissioner’) on 29 Aprii 2008 in which the




dismissal of the third respondent (“Ms Roux”) was found to b? both procedurally

and substantively unfair.

[2]

financing sales consultant at the time of her dismissal on 1

Ms Roux was employed by the applicant in the positjon of asset-based

? December 2007.

She had been employed for approximately 12 years afd was dismissed

following having been found guilty of:

‘Non-compliance with the quality of service requirements of Iem[s' code of conduct

(par 9.3} in that you on 23 October 2007, behaved unprofessionall
towards a business partner, Mr Don Emslie of Emslie Motors.’

Paragraph 9.3 of the code of conduct states the following: b -’

‘Members, colleagues and business partners are at all times
professionally and with the greatest respect, regardless of 1

and disrespectfuli;

ndled courteously,
“behaviour of the

member, colleague or business partner. An..injustice to a mgmber, colleague or

business partner is viewed as an injustice to lemas and will be dea

(3]

appeal hearing. The appeal wa&conéMqu in her absence

Ms Roux lodged an appeal aggainst her dismissal but

was upheld.

Arbitration award

with as such’

did not attend the
and her dismissal

[4]

The commissioner dismissed an application for le

al representation

made at the arbitration hearing. in his ruling the commisdioner detailed the

grounds on which the company sought legal representation 3nd conciuded that

he was not persuaded that it would be unreasonable, cons

25, to disallow legal representation.

In the award, the commissioner sets out a summary

[5]

five witnesses three of whom, testified for the applicant and

6]
onus to prove the employee’s alleged offensive conduct and
not dismissed for a fair reason within the meaning of section

ering CCMA rule

pf the evidence of

h#o for Ms Roux,

The commissioner concluded that the applicant had bot discharged the

that Ms Roux was
188 of the Labour




p—

Relations Act.' The dismissal was found to be procedurally unfair in that the

chairperson refused to hear the testimony of the employee's
was awarded compensation equivalent to eight months' sal
did not seek reinstatement.

Review test

[71  An arbitrator when considering a dismissal for miscon
determine whether the misconduct alleged has been show

probabilities to exist. Section 138 (1) of the LRA permits com|

lwitness. Ms Roux

ary given that she

Huct, is required to
N on a balance of

missioners to ‘deal

with the substantial merits of the dispute with the minimum gf legal formalities’.

In undertaking their task, a commissioner is entitled to ‘cond
a manner that the commissioner considers appropriate in ord
dispute fairly and quickly’. Commissioners must be guide

s T
)

considerations: the resolution of the real dispute betwee
expeditiously as possible; and in a manner.which is fair.?2

F the arbitration in
[ to determine the
E ‘_Py at least three
n the parties; as

[8] This Court, with reference to the grounds of review| is entifled to set

aside an arbitration award if the.commissioner's decision fall§ outside of a band

of decisions to which a reasonable person could come

evidence (see Sidumo and Another:v Rustenburg Platind

'on the available
Mines l,td and

Others).® It is accordingly not the correctness of the comnissioner's decision

which is relevant but whether the result of the arbitrati
reasonable.

n proceedings is

(9] In Bestel v Astral Operations Ltd and Others,? Davis J4 emphasised:

‘...that the ultimate principle upon which a review is based is{ justification for the

decision as opposed to it being considered to be correct by the reriewing court; that is
i

whatever this Court might consider to be a better decision is
proceedings as opposed to an appeal. Thus, great care must be

this distinction, however difficult it is to always maintain, is respectgd’.

' 66 of 1995.

2 CUSA v Tao Ying Metal Industries and Others 2009 (1) BCLR 1.
312007] 12 BLLR 1097 (CC).

4[2011] 2 BLLR 129 (LAC) at para 18.

rrelevant to review
taken to ensure that
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[10] The test in Sidumo for determining whether a deczfion or arbitration

award of a CCMA commissioner is reasonable is a stringent gne that will ensure

that awards are not lightly interfered with.®

[11] It follows therefore that it is only an award that is ud
evidence, is based on speculation, is disconnected from

made without appropriate consideration of evidence that m]
unreasonable®,

Grounds of review

supported by any
ne evidence or is
ay be considered

[12] The applicant has raised a number of grounds L;Df review in this

application: |

12.1
commissioner failed to apply his mind properly to t

failed to give proper reasons for hi%ﬁecision;
K

In making his ruling not to allow ‘legal rr?resentation, the

é application and

12.2 The commissioner misconducted. himself an
gross irregularity and/or exceeded his powers in
arbitration proceedings in that he misconstrued releva

and fact in such proceedings by:

12.2.1 allowing the respondent to venture b

lor committed a
e course of the

it questions of law

pyond the issues

contained. in the pre-arbitration minute (a groqnd which was not

pursed at the hearing of the matter);

12.2.2 finding that Mr Emslie ‘admitted’ that he swore at Ms Roux

when this was not the evidence of Mr Emslie;

12.2.3 failing to advise a lay person in respect

of issues such as

leading evidence and conducting cross-examingtion and failing to

draw an adverse inference from the fact that t : witnesses called

by the respondent never put their versions o the applicant’s

wiinesses and accordingly there was no op

answer to the respondent’s version;

ortunity given to

* sidumo and Another v Rustenburg Platinum Mines Ltd and Others at pafa100.

® See A Myburgh 'Sidumo v Rusplats: How the Courts deal with it’ (2009)

B0 LS.




12.2.4 making a subjective finding in para 623 of his award

relating to the motive for the dismissal which wag not supported by

evidence and was largely speculative;

12.2.5 finding that Ms Geyer had done everythipg in her power to

prevent Ms Roux's witness from testifying, wlich was irrational
and without any foundation when Ms Roux was not prevented
from calling her witness and this issue was not put to Ms Geyer in

cross-examination:; and

12.2.6 Ms Roux abandoned her opportunity to gppeal the finding,

at which appeal any procedural or substantive i ?gular'rty.
Evaluation

[13] The third respondent submitted that the record. filel was inadequate

given that there were many inaudible parts which re incapable of
transcription and that no reconstruction of the record had b sen undertaken. A
record of proceedings is rarely ?f-pél-"fect image of all aspec s of an arbitratio::
hearing. What is required is that a recergfiled fairly and sufficiently reflects the
relevant aspects of the evidence presented at the arbitration jproceedings so as
to place the court in a position that alllows a review exercisef to be undertaken.

In addition to the transcript prepared, the commissioner's]notes have been

availed to this Court, as has additional documentary evider
matter. | am satisfied: therefore that, cognisant of the fact
imperfections, the record filed in this matter allows this C

ce relevant to the
that there may be
purt to perform its

functions in terms of section 145 and is therefore adequdte for the current

PUrposes.

[14] The first ground of review raised by the applicant rel

es to the decision

made by the commissioner to disallow legal representatio at the arbitration

hearing. In his written ruling on legal representation, the co
the arguments of the parties, referred to rule 25 of the |
concluded that the dispute concerned misconduct and

Imissioner detailed
CCMA’s rules and

'that he was not

persuaded that it would be unreasonable to disallow legal representation. The




e

transcript of proceedings bears testimony to the commissioper's reasoning in
this regard.

[15] The provisions of rule 25 are mandatory: parties to rbitration hearings

may not be represented by a legal practitioner where the dispute: being
arbitrated concerns an employee's dismissal for alleg misconduct or
incapacity. An application for legal representation may only{be granted where
the commissioner and all parties consent, or where the commissioner
concludes that the nature of the questions of law raised ip the dispute, the
complexity of the dispute, the public interest and the compafative ability of the
parties and/or their representatives to deal with the dispufe justifies such a

rufing.

[16] The applicant did not present the commissioner with an argument that
ch justified legal
representation or that the public intere§t; required such rgpresentation. The

there were questions of law raised in the dispute

application was founded rather on argument alone regarding the alleged
complexity of the dispute and the comparative ‘ability of the parties to deal with
the dispute. In any application for legal-fepresentation, the afplicant must make
25. The grant of

is not one just for

out a proper case in accordance with the provisions of rul
legal representation in misconduct and incapacity dismissal
the taking. What is: required is'that the appropriate facts placed before a
commissioner in..support of such application. Consequently, the conclusion
reached by the commissioner to disallow legal represpntation was not
unreasonable in the face only of argument that a human resources manager
lacks the experience and expertise required to represent the employer when
compared to the union representative. No evidence was placed before the
commissioner to justify the applicant's submission that the representatives were
not comparatively able to represent the parties in the matte§ and the applicant
took no steps to prove that this was indeed so. Furthermore, jhaving studied the

record and the commissioner's ruling, | am not persuaded that the applicant

made out a case which proved that the matter was of a} complexity which
warranted legal representation. In the circumstances, the fuling was not an
unreasonable one and was justified on the basis of the matgrial placed before

the commissioner.



——

[17] The applicant raises as a further ground of review thatlthe commissioner
misconstrued relevant questions of law and fact duri

the arbitration
proceedings. It is the applicant's case that the commissioger found that Mr

Emslie had ‘admitted’ that he swore at Ms Roux when this w:

of Mr Emslie during the arbitration hearing. The evidence of
arbitration hearing was that when he had put down the phong

not the evidence
' Mr Emslie at the
he was looking at

se nommer. He

his salesman and told him ‘well, fok dit, kry my haar baas

testified that he was ‘never swearing at her’. The commiss
evidence of Mr Emslie to be ‘(w)hen he put down the receive

not to the applicant but to his foreman who was standing cl

Mr Reynders whose evidence is recorded by the commissm ‘

that Mr Emslie admitted that he swore at Ms Roux. The co
conclude that Mr Emslie swore at Ms Roux but rather that

ner recorded the
, he said “Fok dit",
e to him™®. It was
__r as having been

_?mlssmner did not

l'Emslie admitted

3 =g
using the words “Fok dit” even though he denied that the wordls were addressed
to Ms Roux’. The commissioner then found that ‘[cloudled with Emslie’s

admission that he used the words "Foi%?dit", my finding i§ that Emslie was

extremely rude to the applicant during their telephone discusgion on 24 October
2007"'°. | am therefore satisfied:that the commissioner did npt misconstrue the
evidence before him in arriving at the fi nding that he did. Thg commissioner did
not conclude that Mr Ems’lgg had admitted that he had sworp at Ms Roux. The

conclusions reached by the commissioner on this aspe¢t are accordingly

reasonable and justified based on the evidence before him.

[18] The next review ground relates to the observation of|
that:

‘Emslie commanded respect in the close-knit community of Lephf

large business interests. Reynders expressed fear of losing Em
competition. In my view, this fear played a role in the dismissal of]

manner of speaking, the respondent chose the lesser of two evils''{.

7 Transcript page 83 lines 1-2.

® Arbitration award page 19 at para 4.2.10.
® Arbitration award, page 24 at para 6.13.
10 Arbitration award, page 26 at para 6.28.
" Arbitration award, page 25 at para 6.23.

the commissioner

lale because of his

ie's business to the

the applicant. in the



[19] The commissioner's observations are not contradicted} by the record, nor

by the probabilities. Mr Emslie was an important client of thg applicant and this

is borne out from the record. The applicant took the complai

made against Ms
Roux seriously. This is recorded in an email sent by Mr Reynflers and is evident
from his testimony that a good relationship with the dealeys in town is very
important and that after receiving the complaint, he went [to see the dealer
personally in the interests of building a successful busineps. He- testified in
answer to a question regarding the decision to take discipligary action against
told him and that

pﬁwould advertise

Ms Roux that he was very annoyed with what the dealer ha
Mr Emslie had said he would ‘cancel your business’ and that
in the newspaper ‘that is the way you are doing busi@:e :,12' Mr ngnders
thereafter indicated that he was to investigate the matter and stated ‘from there
| am going to take it further. And | think on that moment [in] 'ii:ne | realise that |
had to go further with the disciplinary hearing'’3. Mr Reycﬁ' rs testified under
he is going to
jot from IEMAS'."

ner on this point, |

cross-examination that ‘if we don't attepdto ‘this ggéble
...advertise to the public that this is the épe of service he
Having considered the evidence placed b;i"dre the commissi
find that the conclusion reached regaﬁdjng the decision to gdiscipline Ms Roux
and the fact that fear with regards to losing business played |nto the decision to
dismiss her, to be a reasonable one based on his assessmgnt of the evidence
before him. | do not find that this*was ‘whoily subjective, not supported by the

evidence and largely speculative’.

[20] The applicant's next ground of review is that the appligant claims that the
commissioner failed to guide and advise Ms Geyer asj a lay pefson in
conducting the case for the company inter alia with regardf to the leading of
witnesses and cross-examination. Section 138(1) of the LRA provides that a:

‘commissioner may conduct the arbitration in a manner thal the commissioner
considers appropriate in order to determine the dispute fairly and Tickly, but must deal

with the substantial merits of the dispute with the minimum of legal formalities’.

2 Transcript, page 60 line 18.
" Transcript, page 61 lines 1-3.
" Transcript page 69 lines 7-14.




The commissioner is accordingly afforded a discretion as

which the arbitration proceedings are conducted provided t

to the mahner In
hat the interest of

justice and fairness are not compromised. It is apparent from Ihe record that the

commissioner did take steps to give assistance to the parti
the hearing’®. The commissioner clarified the approach
evidence'® and to the fact that he was to determine whether

s at the outset o
| to documentary

the dismissal was

correct and whether it was an appropriate sanction'’. Both parties were

provided with an adequate opportunity to present their jrespective cases,
present evidence and cross-examine witnesses and the recdrds bears this out.
In performing his functions, the commissioner did not fail fo resclve the real
dispute between the parties, as expeditiously as possibléjand in.a manner
which is fair.'® From the record there is no basis to support a fonclusion that the

commissioner did not act fairly in the manner he conducted p{oceedings.

{21] The applicant suggests the commissioner failed tojdraw an adverse
inference from the fact that the version offMs Roux's'witnesges was not put to
the applicant's witnesses who therefore had no opportunity fo answer to such
version. Ms Roux’s representati%e gﬁ%canvass with Mr Rey ;ders under cross-
examination whether he had hé’a‘r - nversation and hgw he came to the
conclusion that Ms Roux was unprbfe,ssional (and disrespeqtful). His response
was that Mr Emslie had:told"him."® Mr Emslie’s evidence that the conversation
with Ms Roux was ‘katterig snedig byterig' was not challepged under cross-
examination by Ms Roux..What the commissioner's notes fecord is that what
was put to Mr Emslie was whether he could prove that thI conversation was

unprofessional.and rude. His response was that he could pnd that there are

ethics that must be followed and that he received his money after complaining.

It was.then put to Mr Emslie that he ‘uttered the words but ghe can't prove it'.
He denied this. Mr Emslie was also asked in cross-examination if Ms Roux had
provoked him and he said that she had. It was Ms Roux's cagse that she tried to
calm Mr Emslie down and that he had sworn at her. ‘

' page 42 lines 9-10,

'® pages 44-45.

' Page 46 lines 19-23.

8 CUSA v Tao Ying Metal Industries & others 2009 (1) BCLR 1.
' Transcript, page 70 at lines 18-20.
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[22] | am satisfied that that all three of the applicantp witnesses were

provided with an adequate opportunity in cross-examinatior
nub of Ms Roux’s case. Having due regard to the facts and
this case, | am therefore satisfied that no reviewable irregula

to answer to the
circumstances in
ity arose by virtue

of a failure to put a version to the applicant's witnesses in crogs-examination.

[23] The commissioner was faced with two versions: that of the applicant that

Ms Roux was ‘katterig snedig byterig’ but that Mr Emslie on
swore (not at Ms Roux) as he put the telephone down; and

his own admission

the second being

that of Ms Roux that Mr Emslie was rude, even to Ms Mabel

Roux had tried to keep calm, stating that the conve__"

recorded.® Where there exists a factual dispute (see §F
Another v Martell et CIE and Others?’ 2003 (1) SA 11 (SCA)

‘...a court must make findings on (a) the credibility of the vaﬁ%ué?

_be|e, and that Ms
tion was being
Group Ltd and
ér Nienaber JA) :

ctual witnesses; (b)

their reliability; and (c) the probabilities. As to é{a) the court’s finding on the credibility of
a particular witness will depend on its impression about the verjcity of the witness.
That in turn will depend on a variety o{mubsudlary factors, not necessarily in order of
importance, such as (i} the witness candour and demeanour in thg wntness box, (ii} his
bias, latent and blatant, (iii) internal Emdlctlons in his evigence, (iv) external

contradictions with what was pleaded ‘or put on his behalf, (\
improbability of particular-aspects of his version, (vi) the calibre
performance compared to that of other witnesses testifying about

) the probability or
and cogency of his
he same incident or

events. As to (b), a witness’ reliability will depend, apart frofn the other factors
mentioned under (a) (ii), (iv) and (v) above, on (i) the opporjunities she had to
experience or observe the event in question and (ii) the gpality, integrity and

independence of his recall thereof. As to (c), this necessitat

s an analysis and
evaluation of the probability or improbability of each party's ver fion on eacﬁ of the
disputed issues. In the light of the assessment of (a), (b) and (c) the court will then, as
a final step, determine whether the party burdened with the Jonus of proof has

succeeded in discharging it."*

[24] The commissioner's prime function was to determinejthe truth from the
conflicting versions before him and in doing so to make somg attempt to assess

® Transcript, page 108 at line 16.
2 ->2003 (1) SA 11 (SCA).
2 Op at para 5.




1

the credibility of the witnesses by reference to any intgrmal and external
inconsistencies that might exist, to assess their reliability apd to consider the
probability~or improbability of each party's version. (See [§aacs v Education

Labour Relations Council {unreported) C460/2008).

{25]) The commissioner's finding that the onus to prove
offensive conduct on a balance of probabilities had not be

s Roux's alleged
discharged, was
one made primarily on a credibility finding made against thg applicant and its
witnesses and an acceptance of the inherent probability of s Roux’s version.
This is apparent from the commissioner's evaluation of the e\idence before him.

The commissioner's conclusion that Mr Emslie had pen rude to Ms

Mabelebele and had used foul language led him to conclyde that it was not

difficult to believe that he would also have been rude to Ms Roux. This finding is

Iy

one that is justified on the evidence before him and is n asonable in the

circumstances. The additional findings of the cog\;missioher ndicate an attempt

to assess the credibility of the witne%’e: by reference|to the facts and

circumstances before him, to assess their reliability angi to consider the

probability or improbability of eacly pa‘g 's version.

: g
[26] A review court should not interfere with a credibility fi

court, unlike the commissioner, lacks the advantage of first-
the witnesses and their demeanoﬁir, and where there is no
the record to justify calling a commissioner’s finding into quegtion. (See /saacs v
Education Labour Relatibﬁs Council (unreported) C460/2008}at para 24)

[27] As stated previously, it is not the correctness of the commissioner's
decision that this Court must decide on review. In finding ]e dismissél of the
applicant to be substantively unfair, | find that the result fall i_within the band of
reasonable decisions which stood to be made by the comrissioner based on
the evidence before him and that there exists no basis on whjich to interfere with

such decision.

[28] The last two grounds of review raised by the applic t relate in the first
instance to the finding of procedural unfairness made agaifst the applicant by
virtue of the fact that Ms Roux was not permitted to call Ms Mabelebele as a

witness at the disciplinary hearing; and secondly to the fact jhat Ms Roux failed
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to aftend the appeal hearing at which, the applicant contends, any procedural or
substantive unfairness could have been remedied. The chairperson did not hear-
the testimony of Ms Mabelebele at the disciplinary hearing.{The commissioner
recorded in the arbitration award that the chairperson's $tated reasons for
disallowing the evidence as being that: it was for Ms Roux}to ensure that her
witnesses attended the hearing, if Ms Mabelebele was telgphoned the whole
process would start over again and that her evidence was 011y about whaf was
said to her by Ms Roux and not about what was said io Ms Roux. The
commissioner concluded that all three reasons were open o criticism. These
criticisms were that in terms of the notice, the Secretary Rf the disciplinary
hearing was to ensure the attendance of the witnesses;ai:t Es d'tfﬁcult' to see
how the whole hearing would have to start again if Ms Mabelgbele testified; and
it was incorrect that her evidence was only about what s ée heard from the
applicant but would probably have influenced the outco_r__rie.l“ f the hearing. The
commissioner concluded that ‘(o)venlvhergingly, the evidende showed that Ms
Geyer was doing everything in her powﬁr to stop Girly fr m testifying at the
disciplinary hearing, and the chai_rﬂersoﬁ was’ wrong int excluding Girly's
evidence'. He found that the dismiﬁ%_al was procedurally funfair in that Ms
Mabelebele was prevented from tesiif);i}\g.

[29] The disciplinary hearing notice stated that Ms Roux fwas to inform her
witnesses to be present at the hearing and ‘(tfhe Sef

retary will make
arrangements for their presence during the hearing'. In termg of the disciplinary

hearing notice, Ms Geyer was to ensure the attendance jof witnesses. The
minutes of the hearing record that Ms Roux indicated her iptention to call Ms
Mabelebele as a witness and requested at the hearing that Ms Mabelebele be
allowed to testify over the phone given that it was Ms Geyer's role as the
Secretary to ensure Ms Mabelebele was at the hearing; The chairperson
refused this request and ruled that it was Ms Roux’s regponsibility to call
witnesses and that she had had two opportunities to contaqt witnesses during
the hearing. Ms Roux then asked ‘for permission to phone|[Ms Mabelebele to
hear if she could come in and testify’. The chair respond d that if this was
allowed, the process would have to start again and the pitnesses had left
already and could not be cross-examined. In the circumstanges, it is clear that

Ms Roux was not given the appropriate opportunity to call Ms Mabelebele as
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her witness at the disciplinary hearing. | find there to be nothi g unreasonable in
the commissioner's conclusion that a procedural unfairnej; was accordingly
committed in this regard. Furthermore, the commissioner's Eonclusion that Ms
Mabelebele’s evidence may have influenced the outcomelof the disciplinary
hearing, was clearly reasonable given the evidence before hifn.

[30] The last review relating to Ms Roux's failure to attend

he appeal hearing
does not appear to have been raised in these terms du ing the arbitration
hearing, although reference was made in evidence to the failure to attend the
appeal. The commissioner, during the course of proceedingk, did not consider
the issue to be reievant. For purposes of these proceed] és. the applicant,
despite Ms Roux’s failure to attend, had the opportunity"fq.. evisit the decision

made at the disciplinary hearing and arrive at a different deci ion on appeal had

substantive justification to this Court to take this ground of re iew any further.

[31] In conclusion, | find that the comn%sioner did not misconstrue relevant
questions of law and fact during the:course of the arbitration roceedings. There
is nothing before this Court which incjfgiates that the comm sioner committed
misconduct in relation to his duties as alrarbitrator, nor did fhe commit a gross
irregularity in the conduct of procepdings or exceed his powsrs. The findings of
the commissioner fell within a band of decisions to which a 'easonable person
could come on the available evidence. On a considerationjof the grounds of
review raised by the applicant, this Court finds that the applicgtion to review and

set aside the arbitration award must fail.

Costs

[32] The Court has a broad discretion, established by sectign 162 of the LRA,

to make an order for costs according to the requiremen

of the law and
fairmess. The fact that the applicant has not been successfu iin this application
militates in favour of a costs order in favour of the third resgondent. There are
no reasons before me to suggest why costs in this matter shpuld not follow the




14

Accordingly, | make the following order:

[33] The application is dismissed with costs.

(/(/UMV/\

KM Savage

Acting Judge

==
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DETAILS OF ARBITRATION AND HEARING |

[1]  The Arbitration was finalised at the CCMA Polokwane on the 23% September 011, The parties agreed
to file closing arguments on or before the 06% October 2011. The employer as representing Ms M.C

McDonald from the Company. The employee was represented by Mr. Ph hbye an Aftlomey from
|

Johannesburg. i

THE ISSUE TQ BE DECIDED |

(2]  Theissue is whelher the dismissal of the employee was substantively fair or rrt. Procedure was placed
out of issue.

3ACKGROUND TO THE 1SSUE
i

i
b

[3) The employer admitted dismissing the employee for allegedly deleting certgn data from its computer
system/ as a result the employer could not account to SASSA. The consequejice was that the compary

sufiered financial loss. The employer relied on the outcome of a polygraph te t which the employee had
failed. The employer further refied on the fact thai only the employee and arg Riaan could operate the
system. On the other hand the employee denied the misconduct and averre i1hat Riaan, a colleague of
his is the one who was working on the data the day il went missing. |
i

SURVEY OF EVIDENCE AND ARGUMENT

Mr. WALTER LOURIE CHAUMERS teslified under oath that: - -

[4] He is the group’s HR Manager. He chaired the disciplinary hearing. Page 4B of the employer's bundle
contains his findings. He found the employee guilty of the transgression of p ragraphs 4.4.1, 4.4.14 and
4419 of the company's discipiinary code and procedure. it was only thejemployee and Riaan who
could work on the computer system of the company at Thohoyandou. He 2 with the company for a
number of years and it has never happened that data be deleted in this manner. This is information
which the company uses to reconcile its records with the Government. A .o|ygraph test was used lo
sniff out the culprit. It was not the only evidence, the other evidence is that:

- data went missing and,

- only two people knew how fo work on the computer system.

Only signed awards that contain the CCMA approved watermark are authorised, : LP7187-10
_ Page2of8
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]
At the end of the day it could be said, that the polygraph was the detemmifiing faclor because one
passed (Riaan) and the other (the employee) failed. It was a condition of e

need arises the employees will undergo polygraph tests.

loyment that where the

LIZETTE SNYMAN festified under oath as follows:

She is the polygraph examiner who iested the employee. She has been condyicting polygraph tests for
three years. She has done approximately 1700 tests for various companies.{She did her first training
with an American company called ASIT. She did one year intemship; thereaffer she did two advanced
training courses with another American Uriversity called AllP. Boih universitips are accredited. She is
also registered with the South African Polygraph Association (SAPA). AlIP s headed by one Chuck
Splapsky and ASIT by Nait Gordon. Before conducting the test she meels With the client {employer).
They decide on the quesfions to be asked during the test. Thereafler the igterviewee comes in. she
does the compulsory forensic inferview. She gets personal information from fe interviewee, thereafter
she reveals the guestions to be asked during the test. The inferviewee must gnderstand the purpose of
the test and also state his side of the story and reveal if he suspects anyonef Thereafter he.is put on a
chair and the components of the polygraph machine are attached to him. Shejthen demonstrates fo the
interviewee how to conduct himself, not to move ete, and to answer yes or nojthe components are:

- Electro dermal activity (sweat level
- The breathing component

- The heart and blood pressure.companent.

Page 61 of bundle *A™ are the 'qdestions she asked Meérhplo\(éer Some of the questions are irrelevant
but important because they give the tracing average (physical reaction). fhe relevant question she
asked on page 61 is R04, R06, R08 and R10. On all four she found that | employee was decepfive.
The employee failed the polygraph test, he even had a - 8 which is a huge fail. Riaan was also tested,

he passed the entire polygraph test The polygraph has the accuracy of 98%gwhich makes it the highest
reliable lie detector test in the world. ]

Mr. RIAAN GERBER lestified under oath that:

]
]
|
[
[
f
i

He is a Support Supervisor at Thohoyandou. He started in January 201p. The Supervisor and the
Branch Manager have authority over their files. The computer system fney use is Dos 622 and

Vo. 5138 2 3/

Windows 3.11. The Branch Manager did have access to the system but didjnot know how to work on it
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because he was still new. !t was only him and the employee who had knowr !'now. He worked on the
data the day the information got lost; it was the 08% October 2010, He sent information to head office,
The following day Gedfrey from head office told him that the information was ndg all there and it refiected
that only two pensioners were paid. He had to wait for the team to come backffrom the field. When the
team got back all the files of the 08% October 2010 were not on the system anymore. Every information

before and after the 08™ was there. Even the two files Godfrey spoke about wefe no longer there.

On each workstalion there is a back up. The back up for the 08 was nol ther. This kind of loss never
happened before. It is not easy to delete information by mistake because the fomputer asks you if you
are sure that you want to delele. The tally rolls were also never found. The tally rolls contained the same
information that was missing. Most of the staff did not ke their manager but

The tally rolls are the physical back up. In this case they could not be
missing. He has been with the company for 14 years and he only used tally ro

got along well with him.
because they were also
twice.

Mr. FRANCHOIS LABUSCHAGNE testified under oath that:

He has worked for the company for about 15 years. He is the Branch Managegin Louis Trichadt. Prior fo
that he was stationed in Thohoyandou. Their whole operation is based on ll because they work with
cash. It is important that they should trust their employees. After the loss of he data and the tally rolis
he went to Thohoyandou to verify the loss. He checked for the information, it Was gone. He once worked
in Thohoyandou and knows the computer systems there, He was once a sup wvisor. The system is Dos

and itis based on Windows 1. Itis an old system. It is not easy io delefe dataj if you press delete it asks
you if you indeed want to delete l

‘ only time it occurred was
¢ can't recalt what day it

In his career with the company it never happened that he lost information.
when the vehicle bumnt down. Al the information for that day was missing;
was. They need the information to invoice SASSA. Without it they cannot. Thip company has accordingly
suffered a loss. In his opinion the trust between the employee and the compgny has imetrievably broken
down. 1t is only the supervisors who would know which file to delete. He knpw the system because he

once worked these but the curment Branch Manager did not know the system 1
Page 30 of bundle “A" is the Articles of Agreement the employee signed. iterj 3.5 demands utmost good
faith from him. The contract between them and SASSA is curently extendadl tilt March next year, They

have tendered for another contract but are not sure whether they will get § because other companies

4/9
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have tendered as well. On page 42 he employee signed o confirm that he undwstands the policies and
the procedure manuals of the company. I

VELAPHI AMOS MATLAKENG the employee festified under oath that: |

[13] He joined the company on the 01% of April 2005. He was the Technical Supporg Supervisor. On the 08%
November 2010 he was on duty till 17h00 when he knocked off. The next day e got to work at 10h00.
On the 08h he was out in the field but as the team was running smoothly thg Branch Manager called
him back 1o the branch. He did go but knocked off even before the team cou
who did the close up. He is the one who sent the information to Godfrey. He

 ratum. Riaan is the one
did not know anything till
the 120 when the Branch Manager called him and told him that Godireyfwanted information. He

|
instructed that the information should be found and be sent through to Godfrey jet head office.

[14] He searched for the information and did not find it. He asked Riaan for it 2§ he is the one who was
working on it on the 08%. He searched even in the vehicle they were

computer, the information was not there. They also searched for the tally rolls

gng. He searched in the

.Jothing was found. Riaan
was not there when everybody in the office was searching despite that the B anch Manager had said no

i
one must leave before the information is found. Riaan did not tell him that th information was missing
til the Branch Manager told him on the 12%. He denies deleting the informatiof. He has no reason to do
it. A lot of the staff at the branch did not like the Branch Manager. They even pdged a grievance. Lourie

Chaimers came to solve it. But, he (Matiakeng) did not have a problem with thg Branch Manager.
(15] When a team cores back from theeld e Serior Operator ives the tally rofs tothe Branch Clerk, the

make sure that the storeroom is locked. Page 44 is the tally roll register; it was done by one Tsietso.

She has since been dismissed for the missing tally rolis. The Branch Manz fer was also dismissed for

failing 1o lock the storeroom. He did go to the lie detector fest in Lowis fTrichadt after the Branch
Manager told him to.

ANALYSIS OF EVIDENCE AND ARGUMENT
[16] The employee was charged as follows:

*You will be required o answer the following charges at the enquiry;
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1. Dishonesty (which includes but is not limited to theft, bribery, fraud, forgdry or defalcation of any
nature, the unauthorized removal of any material from the company, or fromgany person or premises
where such material is kept, failure to report any dishonesty by a fell
(Paragraph 4.4.1 of the Disciplinary Code and Procedure) in that it is alleg

einployee/supervisor)
that

1.1 You removed andlor assisted in the removal of Tally Rolls for payment Workstation A of the
Mutale Payment Team for payment on 08t November 2010 and/or;

1.2 You removed and/or deleted the electronic file backups for the [utale Payment team’s
payments made on the 08t November 2010 from the internal and extemal hird drives.

And/or

|
!
|
i

2. Sabotage (any intentional or malicious act to interfere with the records and ir assets of the company.
(Paragraph 4.4.14 of the Disciplinary Code and Procedure) in that it is alleged that;
24 You intentionally removed andfor assisted in the removal of the Tplly Rolls for payment
Workstation A of the Mutale Payment Team for payments made on the 08" November 2010 and/or;

2.2 You deliberately removed and/or deleted the electronic file backups fog payments made on the
08t November 2010 from the internal and external hard drives for the Mutale Pﬂ.ymentTeam.

Andior s NN y o I.

3. Damage or loss sufiered by the company through the disregard of §s rules and procedures.
(Paragraph 4.4.19 of the Disciplinary Code and Procedure) in that it is allejed that:

3.1 The company suffered a loss of Tally Rolls for Payment Workstation A
the 08% November 2010 and/or;

RETEm——

f the Mutale Payment on

32 The company suffered a financial loss in that employees were requirell to work overtime whilst
attempting to recover the Tally Rolls and the electronic file backups for Payent Workstation A of the
Mutale Payment Team for payments made on the 63> November 2010.

Only signed awards that contain the CCMA epproved watermark are authotised. | LP7187-10
Page 6 of 9

Lest sand on: Thu 20-Oct-2011 15:25:48

: Last saved by; FezekaR




\

21. Bel,

(17

[18]

[19]

[20]

(1]

211 13:58

COMA

conviction. If there is evidence in aliunde to corroborate the negative outco

Vo h138 2. 7/9

E 3 finding of guilt will be

It is setiled law that the negative outcome of a polygraph test on its ownﬁt not enough to found a

susiainable.

Vide: Foods & Allied Workers Union obo Kapesi & others v Premier
Foods (2010) 31 ILJ 1654 (LC)

It is common cause in casu that ihe employee failed the polygraph test. |

her opening address Ms

McDonald stated that the employer was not only relying on the polygraph tegt but there was also other
evidence to corroborate it. The “other” evidence which she alluded to in her opening statement was that

the employee admitted that only he and Riaan could work on the system. Fur hermore she refied on the
evidence of four witnesses. Of the four a witness who testified that there wasievidence in aliunde is the
chairperson of the disciplinary hearing M. Chalmers. The other witness, My Snyman testified on her

qualifications, how she conducled the polygraph tes, the reliabifity thereof an

the outcome.

As far as the “other evidence” is concerned Riaan and Mr. Labuschagne weré not helpful. It is common

cause that the employee admits that the information got lost. That admussior

does not prove that he is

polygraph test. As far as Mr. Chalmers is concemed, he testified that there was “other evidence” in that:

quilty of the misconduct; it can be therefore not be viewed as cormborng the outcome of the

- Dala got missing and,

- Only two people could work on the system.

---!'i i : b I L
These are known facts which-do not take the matter further; anyway even b

ore cross examinalion Mr.

Chaimers himse!f stated in his evidence in chief that at the end of the day it |s the polygraph test that is

the determining faclor because Riaan passed and the employee failed.

faled certainly makes a person suspicious but that alone cannot even or

e fact that the employee
a balance of probabilities

found a finding of guill. Justice Basson in FAWU obo Kapesi v Premier F$ods supra held that:

*At best a polygraph can be used as part of an investigation process whettr
i

the conduct of a parlicular individual is warranted®. Coincidentally
recommended in he conclusion on page 62 of bundle “A",

In fact if the polygraph was conclusive she would not recommend furtherﬂ
conceming polygraphs is clearly known to Ms McDonald because in her

further investigation into
s is what Ms Snyman

nvestigation. The principle

wn closing arguments she
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refers fo Govender and Chetty v Cargo and Container Services KN 4881, dnerein it was stated that
the polygraph can orly strengthen other evidence. There is none in this case.

s McDonald argued that
the employee denied that there was bad bood between him and the Branch

anager angd that should
be seen as extraneoiis evidence which the polygraph should strengthen. Empl yee did not deny this, he
said thal the slaff iad a problem with the Branch Manager but Mr. Chal
problem.

ers came {o solve that

[22] He sald further that he personally did not have a problem with the Branch Mgnager. | havé not found

any sustainable evidence to disbelieve him, even if it were to be found thal hd did have a problem with
the Branch Manager, to conclude that because he had a problem with the B
the information so “hat the company must suffer a loss and thereafter d '_ide to charge him and
probably get rid of hm is 3 chain of dangerous speculation which may lead lojgross injustice. | find thal
the employer has fiiled fo jusiify the dismissal. It was substantively unfair.
compensation inforned by the evidence of the employer's witnesses that

employee anymore.

ch Manager, he deleted

AWARD
|

1. The employer is or lered to pay the employee in the sum of R124 586.00 (§alculated as follows: R11

326 monlhly salary at the time of the dismissal x 11 months) being the eq];li‘valence of remuneration
from the date of the dismissal up to the dale of the awand.

2. The primary reme fy of a reinstatemen’ with full back pay would have bjen apprapriate under the

circumstances but he employee himself through his Attomey prayed for corjipensation calculated from

the date of the disriissal to the dale of th:: award.

3. Ifind that the comy ensation prayed for is fair and equitable.

-

(\,\i M’\_‘,/ihg\ c;:..f-a_.l_,(,c_..-ﬁ*)ﬁ_

CCMA COMMISSIONEF : M. L. Mashego]
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Attached please find written judgment in respect of ll'1rd respondent’s

application for leave to appeal: 6 September 2011.

"




sp. F011 16412 Bevorates §

IN THE LABOUR COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA
(HELD AT JOHANNESBURG)

in the matter between;

NATIONAL UNION OF MINEWORKS
MOKOQOENA, K A

and

THE COMMISSIONER FOR CONCILIATION,
MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION
LUNGI LUCWABA N.O.

EZULWINI MINING COMPANY (PTY) LTD

Vo. 8597 P 3

CASE NO: JR2678/08

- First Applicant
S#cond Applicant

ﬁjlst Respondent
Secgnd Respondent

Tliird Respondent

WRITTEN JUDGMENT IN RESPECT OF THIRD RESPgEgENT'S

APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO APPEAL: 6 SEPTEM

ER 2011

ARENDSE AJ

1. i furnished written reasons on 1 October 2010 in respect ¢f an order | gave

on 21 July 2008 that:

e o o
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1.1 the arbitration award dated 13 October 2008 Is rTJiewed. and set

aside:

9
1.2 the conduct of the third respondent in not appoivhing the second

applicant amounts to an unfair labour practice;

1.3 the third respondent is to appoint the second applick%nt to his position

retrospectively; and
1.4 the third respondent is to pay the applicants’ costs. '.

Prior to me furnishing written reasons on 1 October 201(*{ but subsequent
to the order of 21 July 2009, the third respondent ser}ed its notice of
application for leave to appeal in terms of 8 166(1) of the j.abour Relations
Act, 1895 (“the LRA" read with Rule 30 of the Rules of thf Labour Court of

South Africa, on 5 August 2009.

Given that no written reasons had been fumished as j:r.e date of the
application for leave to appeal, the applicants naturally regerved their rights
to fully elaborate upon the grounds of appeal upon recgipt of the writlen

reasons aforementioned.

Although the parlies filed written heads of argument spbsequent to the

notice of application for leave to appeal dated 5 August ::im, no further or
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additional grounds to that contained in the origina! notige of application

aforesaid, were advanced by or on behalf of the third resp:ﬁndenl.

In any event, on the day of the hearing of the applinﬂa‘on for leave fo
appeal, i.e. 25 July 2011, Adv Boda, appearing on bghalf of the third
respondent, indicated that the sole basis on which leave pas being sought
(and in respect of which it was submitted there were rea'.p::mable prospects
of success on appeal), related to the “key” question whet!i;r the suspensive
condition had been met by the second applicant after he gpplied for the job

in question.

Prior o the commencement of oral argument, | had agaiiij indicated to the

parties’ legal representatives that the delay in finalising the matter was not

acceptable, and that the parties were entitied to speedy j stice. | reiterated
to counsel the reasons advanced in my written judg
2010, and the subsequent delay in the matter only being irgued on 25 July
2011. Both counsel indicated thal ine explanation was "ceptabia to t'hem,
and that neither party took issue with it. Accordingly, | :sh to indicate my
indebtedness to the parties, and their legal counsel, for ﬂ1eir patience, and

understanding in the matter.

Dealing with the issue at hand, it is common cause thal the second

applicant was employed at South Deep Mine, and whilsLea employed, he

had applied for a job as a Senior Reduction Operator ( RO" at the third

oo
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4

respondent's metallurgical plant where gold and uranhlm are refined.
Prospective empioyees are usually employed subject t¢ two conditions:
first, they have to pass a polygraph test; and, second, thep} must undergo a

medical examination.

5.  The second applicant was offered employment on 13 Au#;ust 2008, which
he and the employer signed, and accepted subject ifo the following

condition:

“The employment is subject to your successful co :pfetion of Medical

Examination™.

6. The employment contract itself, and it is also the erence. does not
describe fully or at all what the position of SRO entalled, save that the

employment contract states that.

“The position of Senior Reducfion Operator n the production

department (metallurgical plant with Ezutwini Mining Company)”.

7 On 28 July 2008, the second applicant had undprgone a medical

examination, and the certificate dated 1 September zoug, reads as follows:

“The employee/applicant has been examined fo{[ the occupation of

SRO reagent (surface). He was declared fit bﬁrt under °restricted

PR
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10.

5

|

occupations’, it was wrilen in hantwriting ‘for surface non-

machinery with dry work ...".

On 1 September 2008, the day on which the second apgjicant was due to

start, he was told that there was no work for him. A

respondent, the second applicant’s employment was ‘nulfified” because he
could not work in very dusty areas and that he was suppgsed to work with
heavy machinery which now appears to be excluded fol!cpfu_ing the medical

examination.

The CCMA arbitrator found that no reasonable expectatioﬁ was created by
the third respondent in that the second applicant waq aware that his

employment contract was subject to a successful medical ?fxamination.

In my writien reasons of 1 October 2010, | set aside thai award as wholly
unreasonable, and stated that an analysis of the evidence i!:efors.- the CCMA
arbitrator, and a proper reading of the review papers, the following facts

were disclosed:

10.1 the second applicant was never told during his interéliew what the job
of SRO would entail, and that he would be§ required to do
underground work, work in wet or dry areas, or fhat he would be

required to carry heavy machinery;

b
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10.2

10.3
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6

when the second applicant submitted for a medicaﬂexaminatlom he
was not asked by the medical examiner what the iob entailed and
moreover, that he was required to do underground |

or work in wet or dry area areas (neither were the W

medical examination® ever defined by the emplojer nor was any

evidence led what a “successful medical examinatioh® is or was);

the medical certificate clearly states that the second applicant was fit

for work albeit that there were some restrictions.

In those circumstances, | found that it was wholly unreasadable to withdraw

an offer of employment which had been accepted, and sTed in writing by

the second applicant on the basis of a condition or ¢cond

never disclosed or revealed to the second applicant.

lions which were

In the review proceedings, counsei for the third respondﬁnt had admitted

that the third respondent had erred but that its posilion pevertheless was

that the second applicant was never employed. | neverlizaeless found that

the second applicant was indeed employed, and h3d been offered

employment in writing having met the two suspensive cpnditions, i.e. the

polygraph test, and the medical examination.

It is common cause that the second applicant was offerat;l employment on

13 August 2008, subject to the following condition:
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bietion of medical

“The employment is subject to your successful com,

e~

examination”,

It is so, as counsel for the third respondent contended, télat in contractual
seftings the phrase “subject fo” usually creates a sus;#nsive condition.
(Badenhorst v Van Rensburg 1988 (3) SA 768 (A) diti T77TH-778- (A);
Parsons Transport (Pty) Lid v Global Insurance Co Ltd POOB {1) SA 488
(SCA) 492E). |

it is well-established that a condition precedent (aéo known as a
suspensive condition) suspends the operation of all %or some of the
obligations flowing from the contract until the occurré;nce of a future
uncertain event. (See: Design and Planning Seivice v K ;:;ger 1974 (1) SA
689 (T) 695C; De Villiers v Van Zyl [2002] 4 All SA 262 (I*C) 279, Christie's,
The Law of Contract in South Africa, 6 ed (2011) 145). |

Whether a condition is precedent or resolutive i a mal;;er of construction
(Tuckers Land and Development Corporation (Pty) Lid v jSummerviﬂa 1981
(2) SA 17 (C)), the words “subject to” being the normal |;uay of indicating a
suspensive condition. (See: Badenhorst v Van Renqug (supra); and

Parsons Transport v Global Insurance (supra) para [12]).

Adv Boda who appeared for the third respondent soughfto persuade me in

a forceful address that not only was the condition a conqitinn precedent, but
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also that it had not been fuffilied. He contended that this \.fas the only issue

which | had to consider, and that in his view, there are irheed reasonable

prospects of a court on appeal disagreeing with my earliefr view expressed

in my written judgment of 1 October 2010. Adv Ma!ari, arguing for the

applicants, referred me to the evidence, and contended (liaqually forcefully)

that the requirements were indeed met by the second applicant, and that

accordingly he had indeed been employed by the thirg

condition precedent having been met.

| respondent, the

In our law, the fulfiment of a true suspensive condition #nust be pleaded

and proved by the person who is relying on the contract.

Auto Protaction Insurance Co 1963 (1) SA (AD) 644G-H).

Having regard to the evidence placed before the CCMA

| {(Resisto Dairy v

lommissioner (the

second respondent), and having regard to the review papers, | am satisfied

that the second applicant had indeed fulfilled the suspe

the condition precedent having subjected himself

hsive condition or

'to the medical

examination, and having done so successfully. Not oiﬂy was there no

evidence of any further conditions attached to the job of

fSenior Reduction

Operator {SRO), but none were alleged or indeed praéved by the third

respondent during the course of evidence and/or argrflment before the

CCMA Commissioner.

1

T
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17.  In the circumstances therefore, | remain unpersuaded that there are any
reasonable prospects of an appeal tribunal finding or esfablishing that the
second applicant did indeed not fulfil the susgensive condition

aforementioned.
18.  Accordingly, the application for leave to appeal is dismisse-id.

19.  In my view, the law and faimess requires that each parfy pay theirits/his

OwWn costs.

N~

ARENDSE AJ |
8 SEPTEMBER %911
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IN THE LABOUR COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA

(HELD AT JOHANNESBURG)

CASE NO: JR2678/08
In the matter between:
NATIONAL UNION OF MINEWORKERS First Applicant
MOKOENA KA Second Applicant
and

COMMISSIONER FOR CONCILIATION, MEDIATION
AND ARBITRATION First Respondent

LUNGI LUCWABA N.O. Sgcond Respondent

EZULWINI MINING COMPANY (PTY) LTD
Third Respondent

WRITTEN REASONS FOR ORDER GRANTED ON 21 PJULY 2009 |

ARENDSE AJ

1. On 21 July 2009, after having read all the documents fied of record, and
having considered argument presented to me by legal rerresentatives for

the applicants, and the third respondent, | ordered as folpws:




L0t 2010 15:58

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

Acvocates § Vo. 3562 P,

The arbitration award dated 13 Octobar 2008 F reviewed and set

aside.

The conduet of the third respondent in not apgointing the second

applicant amounts to an unfair labour practice.

|
The third respondent is to appoint the secorld applicant to his

position retrospectively.

The third respondent is to pay the applicants’ cogis.

2. Subsequent thereio, the third respondent indicated thq it wished to apply

for leave to appeal the order aforesald.

3. On 27 November 2009, a copy of the transcript of t:Inhearing that took

place before me on 21 July 2009 was sent o me Yor

ature”,

4, In the meantime, the third respondent had filed heads of argument on

28 August 2009 in support of its application for leavg to appeal, and it

sought leave to supplement its heads of argument onge written reasons

were received by them. Notice of application for leave jo appeal was filed

on § August 2009.

5. On 13 August 2009, the Registrar notified the parfjes that they are

required to deliver their written submissions in relatiqn to the leave to

3
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appeal application on 27 August 2009, and 3SIeptember 2009,

respectively,

B. Following various enquires by the third respondent's TPI representatives,
| wrote to the Registrar, and copied 1o the parties, thatfthe transcript of the

hearing that took place on 21 July 2009 related only t§argument, and that

| am still required to provide written reasons. | had undertaken to do so by
no later than 31 May 2010 whereafter | would pr:Ide the parties an
opportunity to make further or additiona! written submirsions in reiation to

the leave to appeal application,

7. Subseguent thereto however, | was still awaiting the fourt files from the
Registrar’s office in Johannesburg, and | subsequentl)Jreoeived same via

the Labour Court Registrar in Cape Town in approximately June 2010.

8. During the recess period in June/July 2010, | had t;acorne involved in
approximately 200 matters on behalf of the South Afrigan Social Security
Agency (‘SASSA? in my private capacity, and somefjow the court files
had been mixed up with the SASSA files. It was jpnly after several

enquiries by the third respondent’s legal representatiyes, and aﬂgr the
judgment in the SASSA matters was delivered on 13Leptembar 2010,
that it occurred to me that the said court files may weil b in the custody of
the State Attorney, Cape Town. After a diligent search, and fortunately,
the State Attorney managed to retrieve the court files in 1pproximately the

week of 20 September 2010.
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12.

4

It goes withéut saying that any delay in handing den judgment, and
providing written reasons, in a matter is not accepfable, and that the
parties are entitled to speedy justice. | accordinghyf apologise for any

inconvenience that the lengthy delay may have causedr,

Returning to the matter at hand, the key issue for the third respondent is
whether or not the second applicant, Mr K A Mokoenal was employed by
the third respondent, and, if so, whether he was disrhissed by the third

respondent, and if so, whether such dismissal was fair.

It is common cause that the second applicant was gmployed at South
Deep Mine, and whilst so employed, he had applied fof a job as a Senior
Reduction Operation (“SRO") at the third respondent's jmetallurgical plant
where gold and uranium are refined. Prospective empjoyees are usually
employed subject to 2 (two) conditions: first, that they|pass a polygraph

test, and second, that they undergo a medical examinatipn.

The second applicant was offered employment on 13 Aggust 2008, which
he and the employer signed, and accepted :'f.ubjeJo to the following

condition:

“The employment is subject fo your successfu completion of

Medical Examination”,

5
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14.

15.

18.

The employment contract itself, and it is also the 'lvidence. does not

describe fully or at all what the position of SRO en iied, save that the
employment contract states that “he position of| Senior Reduction
Operator in the production department (metaliurgical biant with Ezufwini

Mining Company)”.,

On 28 July 2008, the second applicant had undLrgone a medical
examination, and the certificate dated 1 Septembe} 2008, reads as

follows:

“The employee/applicant has been examined fof the occupation of
SRO reagent (surface). He was declared fit bdt under “restricted
occupations’, it was writlen in handwriting ffor surface non-

machinery with dry work _.."

On 1 September 2008, the day on which the second apl:licant was ciue to
start, he was told that there was no work for him. Acchrding to the third
respondent, the second applicant's employment was Twliified” because
he could not work in very dusty areas and that he was upposed to work
with heavy machinery which now appears to be excligled following the

medical examination.

In the CCMA arbitrator's award, the arbitrator found rrt::o reasonable

expectation was created by the third respondent in {that the second

b
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17.

18,

19.

applicant was aware that his employment contrar:lr- was subject to a

successful medical examination.

in my view, the award is wholly unreasonable, and fJIls to be reviewed,

and set aside.

An analysis of the evidence before the CCMA Commissioner, and a

reading of the review papers, discloses the foliowing:

18.1 the second applicant was never told during his |interview what the
job of SRO would entail, and that he would pe required to do
underground work, work in wet areas, or that hejwould be required

to carry heavy machinery;

18.2 when the second applicant submitted for a medidal examination, he
was not asked by the medical examiner what the job entailed, and
moreover, that he was required to do undergrund work, heavy

work, or work in wet areas;

18.3 the medical certificate clearly states that the

fit for work albeit that there were some restrictio

In these circumstances, it is wholly unreasonable to withdraw an offer of

employment which had been accepted and signed in wri nlg by the second
applicant, on the basis of a condition or conditions which were never

disclosed or revealed to the second applicant. The appropriate course in

5
I
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20.

21

22.

the circumstances would have been to immediatdly commence with
incapacity proceedings which may or may not havé iresulted in a fair

termination.

During argument, | was told that the third respondent kdmitted that it had
erred, but its position was that the second applicant wias never employed.
| find that the second applicant was indeed employeq in every sense of
that word, having heen offered employment in wl‘iting. and having
accepted it, and having met the suspensive conditionq i.e. the polygraph

test, and the medical examination, which were requirad|

During the course of argument, the third respondent's legal representative
requested that in the event of a finding that the sechnd applicant was
indeed employed, that | should rule that the GCMA did have jurisdiction in
the matter, and refer the matter back to the CCMA fo !a hearing on the

metits of the dismissal.

In the circumstances of the matter, | am not inclined to o o as once it is
established that the second applicant was employed, itfis common cause
that such employment was summarily terminated witHout due process,
and without a valid reason. It follows therefore that first, the sécond
applicant was duly employed by the third respondeni; with effect from
1 September 2008, and second, that the subsequent fermination of the
employment constituted an unfair dismissal, and as | sfated in the order

granted on 21 July 2009, ‘the conduct of the third ra%pondent in not

§
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23.

appointing the second applicant amounts fo an unfair }abour practice”. As
a result, the third respondent is required to appoint thefsecond applicant to

the position of SRO with effect from 1 September 2008

As stated in the order aforesaid, the third respondent l§ required to pay the

applicants’ costs.

ARENDSE, A

(Ocﬁ]f;, Lo/
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IN THE LABOUR COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA
HELD IN JOHANNESBURG

‘ Reportable
1Case No: IS 09/09

In the matter between.

i

NUMSA oBO HLONNGWANE & 20 OTHERS i Applicant
uand :
UNISPAN MANAUFACTURING | Respondent

Date of Hearing: 29 November 2010 to 6 December 2010 agd 03 January 2011
Date of Judgment  : 23 May 2011 ‘

JTUDGMENT

Molahlch |

Introduction :
[1]  The main issue for determination in this matter concgﬁérns the fairness or
otherwise of the dismissal of the 21 (twenty one) apjplicanls who were
assisted by their union the NUMSA (the union). :l'he apphcants are

contesting that their dismissals for allegedly participatirfg in an unprotecied

strike was both proceduralty and substantively unfair. |

[2]  As will appear later in this judgment some of the dismi§sed cmployee were

subsequently re-employed soon afier their dismispal for the same

{

misconduct of participating in a go-slow. It is commaop cause that the re-

employed are also applicants in this matter. Tile dismissals were




HUMSA OB0 HLONNGWANE & 20 DTHERS UNISPAN MANAUFACTURING - CASE No: JS 0909, DiymissalL FOR ParTr 2011

—
L
[

subsequent to an ultimatum which the respondent hadfissued calling upon

the applicants to cease their refusal to perform accordi

had been set by the respondent.

ﬁg to the targets that

initially the applicants contended that they did not indi:vidually receive the

ultimatum.

applicants conceded that they each did receive the ultinr:alum.

Background facts

[4]

It is common cause that the main issue that led to the

This position changed with the amerjdment wherein the

Hispute in this matter

concerns performance largets which the respondent hgd put in place. The

respondent contends that the performance targets whicél the applicants were

required to meet had becn in place both at its Q

va Qwa. where the

applicants were based prior to their dismissals ard the Johannesburg

branches [or some time prior to the applicants embarki

The respondent attributes the reason for the go-slow b)

demand that it should not require them (the applica

100% when it had sought a 50% wage exemption

he on the go-slow.

i the applicants to the
nts) to produce at a

{rom the bargaining

council. At that stage the exemption which the res?gondent had obtained

was due for renewal.

12
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[6]  The respondents contends that prior to embarking dn the go-slow. the

apphicants had actually complied and met the performa

i most of the umes tinished much earlier than their knq

nce targets and had

Ll\ off time.,

7] The respondent dismissed the applicants on the 23 Jandary 2008 following
PP ar) &

an ultimatum which it had issued on the 19 January 2

reads as follows:

“Ulnmatum to resume work

é)()S. The ultimatum

|

You have been on an unprotected strike (go slow or retajdaliun of work} since
!

June 2008
|

We believe that your demand(s) to be l(JfJ% ol wage 10 be paid

before vou intend returning to normal wotking 1argets,

Management is not prepared to meet this

do currently have a wage exemption whi

these demand(s) as we

th still applies until the

facilitation process has been concludeq jand an independent

Appeals Board has made a ruling (you ar

pecifically requested

to meet the targets that were set few ml
vour employviment will be terminated. Yo
the fact that this is not the first time th:

unprotected strike action.

The union has been informed of your action, ;
YOUR UNPROTECTED STRIKE WILL RESULT INL YOUR DISMISSAL
WHICH MEANS THAT YU WILL LOSE YOQUR
RETURN 10 NORMAL WORKING TATRGETS BY I']_HO(} TODAY (19 June

2008).

ths agql. and unless
IF aulention is drawrn o

t you bave resorted to

é.llon UNLESS YOU

I YOU RETURN TO NORMAL WORKING TARGETS BEEFORE THI
DEADLINE YOU WILL NOT BE DISMISSED.” '

‘8]  The consideration which the respondent says it took into account n

. . [
dismissing the applicants was that they were all on find! written warnings

")
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which they received for participating in an unproﬁjeL:tcd strike during

: : il
January 2008. including the two warnings which they feceived prior to the

ulrimatun.

[9]  The respondent in support of its version that the dismisgals of the applicants

L
3

were lor a fair reason called three witnesses, Mr McAs iin. Mr donosky and
Mr Furgerson. The cssence of their testimonies was that the performance

targets which the applicants were refusing to meet werd in place both at the

;
| . 5
lohannesburg and the Qwa Qwa branches. As stated rarlier, according to

them the applicants did not have any problem in meeting the targets

previously.  The problem arose when the applicahts heard that the
respondent intended to apply for another wage egemption from the

bargaining council. i

1

[10] Mr McAslin testified that in opposition to the applidation for the wage
exemption. the applicants addressed a letter to the respgndent whercin they
stated the following:

“We are sure that vou are going to listen 1o our demabhd.
We think 1l we don't get 100% we must see other megns
to geti” ;

[11] The version of the applicants on the other hand, is thatthey were expected
to perform their duties according to performance targpts which were not
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[14])

only unreasonable but were also unilaterally introduded by the respondent

and were unattainabie. !

The 1ssue of the performance targets was discussed ht the meeting of 24
]
April 2008, with My Jonosky. At that meeting, the applicants submitted o

proposal which thev regarded as reasonable and acHievable performance

targets. The proposal was rejected by the respondent.

As concerning the number of warnings which had beed issued against them

by the respondent [or failing to meet the performance til‘.gc
say thal they were regularhy issued with written wamin_ﬁs w

given a hearing,

The applicants do not seem to dispute that at some stag;;’ they used to meet

the performance targets. They however say that in ¢rder to meet those

targets. they either had (o help each other or go back lrlo work after knock
oft o complete their tasks or did that without having to be paid for

overtime.  They however never lodged any compla nt either with the

respondent or the union about the no payment of the ove Time.

The apphicants were issued with written warnings on 9fand || June 2008,

On 10 June 2008, the union requested a meeting with th;lf respondent for 19

June 2008 for the purposes of discussing the performar 1c:Ir. targets. A day

H

before that meeting. the respondent held a meeting With the applicants

L]

r
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1s. the applicants

ithout ever been
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[17]

[18]

without the union and informed them that 1t intended bsumy an ultimatum

against them for participating in an unprotected strike and that u Jecision
i
whether or not to disnuiss them will be taken. g

The applicants say 1t was at this meeting that the respajlldcm told them that
i
the reason for thew failure to meet the targets was be@:;msc they were not

happy with the wage exemption 1t had received.

It is common cause that the ultimatum was issued af 12:38 on 19 lune

2008. The applicants contend that the ultimatum was r,inf'air because of the

tollowing reasons: _

=181 The first applicants were not given enough time:ln miervene and advice
the further applicants.
18,2 The ulimaiem did not clearly indicate what fwac. expected, from the
second to [urther applicants.
18.3  I'he deadline of 17h00 was applicable 1o both da 1 and aight shifts despite

the fact that night shift started as 18h00.”

i
On 20 June 2008. the partics held a meeting which asfindicated carlier had

been at the request ol the union. The discussion at thgt meeting concerned

the performance targets. The following are commog cause ansing from

|

that mecting and subsequent thereto: i

:

J The parties dcadlocked on the issue of pefformance targets,
i
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Did the applicants participate in an unprotected strike?

[19]

;
. The union mformed the respondent that itfintended referr ng g
dispute concerning the issue of pcrfom{ancc largets to the
barganing council. |
° The respondent did not at that stage mdixi:utc Its ntention to

. t
dismiss the applicants on 23 January 2004

. The meeting ended up at 18:30
. The applicunts did not work on the wedkbend of 21 and 22
June 2008, ‘
i
i

. The applicants were issued with letters of fiermination of their

employment on 23 June 2008.

. On 24 June 2008. the respondent re-enjploved one of the

employees who participated in the alleged go-slow.

) Subsequent to the dismissal of the applicgnts. the respondent

advertised those positions that had becomg vacant as a result

ol the dismissal of the applicants. !

jm——

e Thereaficr. 10 of the applicants were reeifiploved.

There are two conilicling versions as to what hap;{ened prior to the

dismissals of the applicants. The respondent contendsfthat the applicants
were on a go-siow which amounted to an unlawful ftrike action.  The
applicants on (he other hand. contend that they were ndt on a strike acton
but that there was a disputce between them and the rcspo%dcnt regarding the
unrcasonable and unilaterally imposed performance targﬁdfts.
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[20] It 1 trite that an emplover is entitled to treat an ungfotected and 1illegal

strike action as misconduct

its employees for that reason. Section 213 of the Labou
Act) defines a strike action as follows:

;
“Strike.means the partial or complete concerted refukal
i

o worh. or the retardation or obstruction of work,

employer or by difierent employers, for the purpose
remedying a grievance or resolving a dispute in resp
o any matter of mutual interest between employer dnd
employec. and every reference to "work" in tuii's
definition includes overtime work, whether it I

voluntary or compulsory.”

[21] The issuc as to whose version to accept as concerning

applicanis participated in an unprotected strike action

The emplover is therefor:

persons who are or have been employed by the sa

entitled o dismiss
|
1Rciatmnﬁ; Act’ {the
; |

by

e
Eo!'

I
f(.'l

15

[
J
1
|
+

|
inhcl.llcr or not the

|
pan be resolved by

resorting 1o the approach which was enunciated in SteTlen[w.sch Farmers’

Winery Group Lid and Another v Martel en Kie and
with what approach to adopt when faced with confli

Court in that case held that the technique to apply genei

Orhers® tn dealing

.
i f.

ing versions. the

| a .
atly entails making
{

credibility findings on the witnesses that testified. their reliability and the

probabilities.

[22]

resolved by way of probabilities without resorting to

Hhe nf 1995,
2003 ¢ 54 17 S0

in the present nstance. my view is that the two conflicthy versions can be

the credibitity of
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[

l—

4]

[
|
f
|
i

witnesses. The version of Mr Hiongwane is that the

1

L
performance targers

were unilaterally introduced in October 2006 at the timqé when the contracts

of the temporary emplavees were converted into permgnent appointments

According to him. the targets set by the respondent we

¢ unreasonable and

thus difficult 10 meet unless they either helped each othr and or work over

time without pay. He further said that they were reétllm'!_\ 1ssued with

1

written warnings for failing to meet the performance

donc without a hearing.

It is undisputed that whatever the means. the applicant

prior 1o April 2008. It is common cause that on 2

apphicants  suggested a reduction in the performarjce targets.

respondent rejected the proposal.

A proper analysis of the cvidence of Mr Hlongwang
applicants were unhappy with the performance targets rd

that at some point. decided not to perform according to

|
largets which were

1
.ﬁid meet the targets
|

!

April 2008, the

The

t
i
|
i
i
1

indicates that the

huircd ol them and

those targets. The

probabilities indicate that the refusal to perform in accor

was because the applicants were aggrieved by the fa

were not compensated 1n the same as others in the sect

therefore demanded that the performance targets be re

lancc (o the tareets
that their efforts
or. The applicants

fuced in line with

what they were earning. In an effort to coerce the respandent to accede o

their demand the applicants resorted to a go-slow whic

9

)i my view falls




NUMSA OBO HLONNGWANE & 20 OTHERS UNISPAN MANAUF ACTURING - Case No: JS 09/08, DFJISSAL FOR PARTI 2011

with the definrtion of a strike action as envisaged by thhi; Act. The applicant
|
i embarking on the go-slow did so without ensuring kbmpliance with (he
pracedural requirements of the Act. This amounted th misconduct which
entitled the respondent (o tuke disciplinary action againgt the applicants,
Was the dismissal of the upplicants unfair?

[25]  As indicated cartier. the applicants are challenging botlf the procedural and
|
substantive fairness of their dismissal. The issue of fairpess or otherwise of

the dismissals of the applicants turns around mainly tw¢ issues. namely the

selective re-employment of others who also participated in the strike action

and the ultimatum.

[26] The approach to be adopted when confronted with the ifsue of Inconsistent

application of discipline or in the application of what is kometimes referred

to as the parnity rufe 1s well established. 1t is trite that tfe complaint about

the incongistent application of discipline is a factor tha{ tlweds o be taken
|

|

Into account in the assessment and evaluation of tlﬂle fairness of the

dismussal of the employee complaining about the same. '

[27) In SACCAWU and Others v Imvin v Johnson Ltd,” the couft in dealing with

the issue of inconsistent application of discipline had the ollowing to say:
- Where. however, one is faced with large number o

ollending emplavees, the best that one can hope for 1

reasonable consistency. Some consistency is the price 1§

be paid for flexibiliy, which requires the exercise of

(1999) 20 LI 230301 AC) a para 20 1




i
r
|
1
|
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discreion m each individual case. If a chairpersonfiof’
disciplinary hearing) conscientiously and honestly, !1|u|
eorrectiy. exercises ius or her discretion in a particfilar
case i a parucular way, 1t would mean that there Wi
untmmess towards the other employees. It would méan
no-more than that lus or her assessment of the aravity ol

the disciphnary ofience was wrong, It cannot be far

that other employees profit from that kind of wr :ng
decision. In a case of a plurality dismissal. a wr g
decision can only be unfair if'i 15 capricious, or indufed
by improper motives or. worse. by a discriminatfng

management policy...” |

[28} The Labour Appeal Court confirmed the approach mflnpled in frin v
|

Jolmson. n its decision in Cape Town City Council v Masitho & Others,”

where it was conlronted with a case where an emplﬂ_yer had dismissed

some employees but issued & warning to another emplpyce who was also
accused of the same offence.  In dealing with thejissue of selective

discipline. the Labour Appeal Court had the following t Esay:

“In SACCAWU & others v Irvin & Johnson Ltd 1 9¢
8 BLLR 741 (LAC) at 751B this Court reiterated tl

consistency is an element of disciplinary fairness, a

H

that st “is really the perception of bias inherent ;n
selective discipline which makes it unfair but went on o
observe (hat the flexibility which is inherent in ltc.
exercise ol discretion will inevitably create the polemiﬁ
for some inconsistency. 1 am not at all sure thit
disciplmary  decisions  involve the exercise of |a

discreton. but even 1t that is so, fairness would seem

20000 21 T 1957 (LAC)

11 !
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that the earlier apphcation of disciplinary measures
cammot be expected 1o be adhered to in the futu
Fairess. ol course. is a value judgment, to pu
determined in the circumstances of the particular czw!L‘.
and tor that reason there is necessarily room fpr
fiexibility. but where two employees have committ qd

the same wrong. and there is nothing else to dislingui

1

them. | can see no reason why they ought not general \

10 be dealt with in the same way, and | do n

understand the decision in that case to suggest (e

aggrieved in consequences of at least a perception
’ .5
D&,

[29} 1t is now clear from the authorities that there is no rule fhat consistency in

disciplinary cases is per se untair. However consistency 1s an aspect to be

taken into account in assessing the fairness of a disciplfnany action, This
was stated in Lubners Furnishers v SA Commercial tterine & Allied
Workers Union & another” as tollows:

“There 15, however. no rule that selective action fs iy
s uniair. the guestion depends on the circumstances

cach case.”

|
|
!
|
Id at para 14 *
CFOURY 7 11T AL ACar ATF A,
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[30]  Once the issue of inconsistent application of disciplindis raised. the duty 1s
l

on the emplover to jusufy the differentiation in the diﬁoiplinar} action. In
1

other words where inconsistent application of diSCi{ljlll'lt Is raised. the

emplover must lead cvidence showing why emplpyees were treated

differently when they were all involved in the sdme offency.  See

Rustenburg Platinum Mines Lid (Bajokeng Rasimond Plutinum Mine; v

CCMA & Others.

[31] In the present instance. except for saying that those whi were re-employed
applied for the positions as advertised. the respondeft led no evidence
Justifving the differential weatment of the applicants.  'In relation to the
emplovee who was re-employed a day after the dismissfl of the applicants.

the respondent savs he was re-employed because} he said that he

participated in the strike because he was intimidated to pPRricipate therein.

The respondent in the present case has failed to proguce evidence that

Lo |
[P]

129
Lrd

provides fair bases lor treating the applicants differentlyfto those who it re-
N . 0 E 0 | 5
employed afier the dismissals. It is for this reason that Iiiimd the dismissals

of the applicants 10 be unfair.

—
[
[

—

Fnow turn to deal with the 1ssue of the fairness of the dig§missal 1n as tar as

the ultimatum is concerned. The requirement of a fair ulymatum was stated

T /2006] 11 BLLR 1Hod (L
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[36]

F

1 Perjorming Arts Council of the Transvaal v Papé

Alled Workers Unions” as tollows:

1
“In my judament a fair wlimawm in the circumstan jes
f

ol this case should have been of sufficient duration

o

have enabled..the employees time to cool down. refl

and ake a ravonal decision with regard to i

continued employment. and for that purpose 10 sdek

advice from therr trade wnion.™

The underlying purposce of an ultimatum is not only 1
employees ol the possible dismissal arising from their n

importantly 1o persuade them to cease their unlawfi

afford them the opportunity 1o explain their failure t

]
utttmatum. !

In my view. the action of the respondent based on the ul

regard is had 1o the totality of the facts and circumstance]

ISSAL FORPARTE 2011

Priniing Wood &

vwarn the striking
isconduct but more

tconduet, 11 the

employees fail to heed the terms of the ultimatum, tife emplover should

H comply with the

imatunt is unfair i

5 of this matter.

it1s common cause that the respondent despite having cqnciuded as early as

FE June 2008 that the applicants were on an illegal strikd
union on 19 June 2008 about the strike action when i

ultimarum which was served at 12:38. It was also nq

only informed the
served it with the

F disputed thar the
|

union official received the ultimatum at 15h04 on 19 .lu*w 2008, making 1t

difficult for hum to mervene and advice the applic

1904 {2y Sa 204 AD at para 217 B-C

nts regarding the
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[38]

-

contents and implications of the ultimatum. The “‘3 dal

i
h
|

Wds never communtcated to the union,

In my view, had the respondent acted fairly by involvih

even before issuing the ultimatum, the dismissal could

issa. Fos pagm 2011

cooling off period”

¢ the umon earhier

i all probabilites

have been avoided. The timeous involvement of the unfon in the process of

considering issuing of the ultimatum could have proyi

opportunity 1o explain to the applicants the possible cp
i

conduct. :

ded the unton the

nsequence of their

The ultimatum was itsell unfair because it was confusing in that it was

given 1o both the day and night shift at the same time.

that the deadline for compliance with the terms of the ul

It should be noted

imatum was 1 7h00

whilst the night shift hours are from 18h00 to 06h00. Hp other words the

night shift cmployees could not comply with the ultinfatun. even if they

wished to do so because the period for compliance had o]xplrcd by the time

they commenced their duties on that day. In this re
conceded under cross exammation that the ultimatum did

as far as the night shift employvees were concerned.

The ultimatum is also unfair because the applicants werg

pect. Mr Jonosky

not make sense in

not given enough

time to consider it and also for the union to consult with t?em about it terms

and implications.
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[40] 1 accepr that 1n certain circumstances the issuing off

[41]

[42]

sausty the requirement ot a hearing in terms of dismis

an ulumatum may

ing emplovees whe

are on an illegal strike. .This may be so particularly wlrk:rc the illegal strike

15 accompanied by a high level of violence and intimidal

[n the present instance. nothing made it difficult or
respondent 1o convenc a disciplinary hearing prior

empioyment of the applicants. In fact, the version of tH

101,

impossible for the
to terminating  the

e respondent is that

the meeting of 20 June 2008 served as the disciplifary hearing. The

apphcants disputed that that meeting which was conchned at their request

constituted a disciplinary hearing, There is insufficient

court 1o support the assertion of the respondent that the

svidence before this

necting of 20 Junc

2008 constituted an informal disciplinary hearing. Theme—:cting focused on

the issue of the targets including the proposal of the rdspondent to reduce

the targets by 10%. The applicants were never calld

mecting to show cause why they should not be dismiss

in an illegal strike and or [ailing to meet the terms of

previous day.  As stated carlier, the meeting ended

d upon during tha
ed for participating
the ultimatum the

when the parties

deadlocked on the issue of the targets and the union indicating its intention

to refer a dispute concerning the same to the bargaining

ouncil.

In hight of the above. [ am of the view that the dismissnrls of the apphcants

were hath substantively and procedurally unfair.

16

The applicants have
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indicated that they no longer wish to be reinstatell in their previous
positions.  The applicants require only compensation for the unfairness of
their dismissals. 1 have found no reason from [the facts 'and the
cireumstances of this case not to award the maximyim compensation as
provided for i the law for those applicants who weref ot re-employed, |

further see no reason in law and fairness why costs sifould not {ollow the

resuits.

[43] Inthe premises the following order is made:

I. The respondent is to pay compensatidn to those of the

applicants who were subsequently re-empfoved.

E The respondent is to compensate the agplicants who were
never re-cmployed in the amount equivdlent 10 12 (1welve)
months calculated at the salary they rece ed as at the time of
their dismissals.

3 The respondent is to pay the costs of the aﬁplicanls.

Molahlehi |

Appearances:

For the Apphcant: Adv P Nkutha instructed by FinLger Phukubje Inc.
Attorneys

For the Respondent: Adv MA Lennox. instructed by Afilan Labrurh Moni
Attorneys







IN THE LABOUR COURT OF SO!

JTH AFRICA

(HELD AT JOHANNESBVRG)

On the 12" day of November 2010
Before the Honourable Mr Acting Justice Shaik

In the matter between:

SOU I'H DEEP MINE ( A DIVISION OF GFI
MINING SOUTH AFRICA (PTY)LTD)

—
™

[

AND

Case No.: ] 2082/10

4

NATIONAL UNION OF MINEWORKERS ' 15T RESPONDENT

THE INDIVIDUAL RESPONDENTS LISTED IN

ANNIEXURE A - 2" RESPONDENT
ORDER

Having read the documents and having considered thg matter:

[T IS ORDERED THAT:

I The interim is discharged.

2.

- party scale, including the costs of junior co

The Applicant tenders to pay the Respondeu:t's costs on the party and

insel throughout and the

costs of senior counsel with effect from 29 ('{ctober 2010.




2

3. The parties will endeavour to reach agreen
costs, as set out above, failing which the

taxation.

LI

-t
At
A . X _I-““\ !'
REQSIA s =

hent on the quantum of

 matter will be set for







IN THE DISCIPLINARY HEARING

i

#

HELD UNDER THE AUSPICES OF TOKISD

In the matter between:

XSTRATA ALLOYS (“Lion Ferrochrome”)

and

KELETSO MOTLAASE (“MOTLAASE”)

Employer

Employee

DISCIPLINARY ENQUIRY : FINDINGS ON SAbeCTlON

CASE NUMBER: TOKISO P10/016

DATE OF OUTCOME: 13 MAY 2010

PANELLIST: AFZAL MOSAM

Tokiso Dispute Settlement (Pty} Ltd

Tel: 011 544 4800

Fax: 011 544 4825

Ermail; info@tokiso.com

Address: 25 Wellington Foad, Parktown, Johannesburg
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INTRODUCTION

1. On 21 April 2010, | handed down a finding that Mr Keletso Motlaase
was guilty of misconduct. | directed the parties lio submit written
argument on the question of an appropriate sgnction for such

Iy
misconduct. ]

PARTIES SUBMISSIONS

It
]

2.  For the Employer it was submitted in the main that hi.ion Ferrochrome
runs a 24 hour — 7 day operation production fe%rrochrome. The
production of ferrochrome involves a significant numkger of complicated
steps and therefore each employee plays a pivotal nole in the success

of the operation. ;

3. Motlaase was employed by Lion Ferrochrome hs an Instrument
Technician and his duties involved the maintainpfng, servicing and
repairing of equipment and machinery critical to Ljf"lon Ferrochrome's
operation. !t is especially critical in a breakdown, &epair or shutdown
situation that Motlaase completes the job he is assi%ned. Failure to do
so halts the entire production process. }

i

4, Motiaase was found guilty of serious misconduct irl that he refused to

obey a lawful and reasonable direct instructioq!p from the Acting

Instrumentation Superintendent to return and compl?te his job.
|
i
|
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Motlaase was further found guilty of insolence in fthat he showed
disrespect to the Acting instrumentation Superintedident and this is

clearly evident of Motlaase's unacceptable attitude pwards authority,
and his reluctance to perform his duties.
i
i

Reference was made to the Code of Good Practice ald the evidence of

Rulph Motshweni and Phillip Bosch, who worked w h Motlaase on a

daily basis and who testified that they cannot work{with Motlaase as
they no longer trust him and furthermore, that theyrcould not rely on

Motlaase to perform his job functions independently.

Regarding the proximity of the time of the miscondug g it was submitted
that it occurred just prior to Motlaase’s knock-off qirne and Motlaase
saw this as an opportunity to leave the workplace athilhe normal knock-
off time in circumstances where he was required to first complete the

assigned task.

This conduct, it was submitted, is indicative of an en;*nployee who does
not have the best interest of his employer at heart réand shows a clear
lack of commitment. This conduct was further agg;?avated by the fact
that when Motlaase was instructed to return toithe workplace to
complete the task, he refused and instead said: "lg.‘a!! the standby to
complete it” and put the phone down on the Acting Instrumentation

Superintendent. ?
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amy,

1

9, |t is submitted that the personal circumstances of Motaase should not

weigh heavily in his favour in that whatever prejudi

te that Motlaase

may have suffered should he be dismissed, is a fesult of his own

making. Motlaase has in the past been disciplineu‘i for ignoring an

instruction. In a period of less than a year he qu found guilty of

committing a similar offence and this is indicative th4t Motlaase is not
!

an employee who is prepared to change and act infa manner that is

conducive of a good employment relationship.

10. In the circumstances, it was submitted that a fai§ and appropriate

sanction is to recommend that Motlaase be dismissed i

11. For Motlaase it was submitted that Lion Ferrochrpme’s disciplinary

code and procedure (‘the Code’) is clear on fhe purpose and

implementation thereaf. The Code clearly states on #.6 clause 8.5 that:

“The intention of this procedure is in m way to punish

employees but rather than to correct unaccrptable behaviour.

Such correctional behaviour must be firm and

12. The Code further states in clause 8.10 that:

effective.”
i
|
[

“An employee will be dismissed if the accu:ﬁlu!ative balance of

i
points after the last offences is 11 points ore #ore.”
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13. The Company uses the system of awarding points to §npose penaities.
in brief, the system works as set out in clause 9.3.4 and 9.23 [N

respectively. Clause 9.2.4 states that: f

“When an offence is committed, covering q'spects falling in
more than one category the penalty points for fthe more serious

aspect only will be awarded.” =

Clause 9.2.3 states that:

“For each month in which no disciplinary acti%p is taken against
the employee, one credit point will be dwarded up to a
maximum of minus 6 points. However, for rhq: month in which a
disciplinary action has been taken, no crecﬂ:it points shall be

given.” 1
i

11
i

|
14. The Code sets out the types of offences and porible points to be

awarded in clause 9.1.6 on p.9 of the Code. T;e offences which

Motlaase found guilty of are set out as foliows:

14.1 “Refusal to carry out direct instruction” l‘"pnder Category A
i
Points to be awarded are between 7 - 11. |

14.2 “Desertion of post without permission” Under Category B.

|
Points to be awarded is between 6 -9. |
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Regarding the finding of guilt relating to “desertion} of post without

permission”, the circumstances were such that :tlaase found it

unacceptable that Van Coller interrupted the callbration process.
Motlaase felt undermined and abandoned the calibr !lion process and
did not sign the work permit to handover the plant io the produétion

team.

Relating to the misconduct of ‘faiure fo obey a dﬂrqct instruction to
return to the workplace to complete a calibration”, it vq:ras submitted, the
circumstances related directly to the calibratio process being

interrupted and being undermined.

was not charged with the misconduct of rudeness }nd therefore |, as

With regard to the finding of insolence, it was subm[\ed that Motlaase
|

the Chairperson, should not impose any penalty pﬁi‘nts on this guilty
|

finding.

It was submitted that apparently Motlaase is on minuis- 6 points and that
| shouid impose the minimum points as a penalty for the misconduct

committed.

Regarding Motlaase’s personal circumstances, itfwas submitted as

follows: !

19.1 Motlaase is the sole breadwinner at h{)me. His wife is

unemployed due to limited employment ?pportunities in the

!
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20.

21.

22. This is not Motlaase’s first offence.

19.2

In conclusion it was submitted an appropriate and f.

area. He supports his wife and two minor

still attending schoal.

i
|
|
shildren who are

He stays in the company house and shoulc1' the sanction of

dismissal be imposed, he would be withou§ accommodation

and this would lead to disruption of his childrgn’s schooling.
1
|

r sanction under
i

the circumstances would be a sanction short of dismisgal.

Discussion

In considering a dismissal for misconduct, item 3‘4) of the Code

provides that:

us and of such

“Generally, it is not appropriate to dismiss aIJ employee for a

first offence, except if the misconduct is ser

gravity that it makes a continued employment relationship

|
1

intolerable. Examples of serious misconducy subject got the

rule that each case should be judged on its

merits, are gross

dishonesly or wilful damage to the property |of the employer,

wilful endangering of the safety of others, pHysical assault on

the employer, a fellow employee, client or cﬁstomer or gross

insubordination.”

The sanction! question in the

present case is whether or not the misconduct of wliich he has been
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23.

24,

25.

26.

L

i
found guilty is so serious and of such gravity that it makes the

continued employment relationship intolerable.

In mitigation, account should be taken of the factjthat the acts of
misconduct for which Motiaase was found guilty e in inextricably
linked. Arising from the desertion of the post, Motiaage refused to carry
out a direct instruction to return to the LCR to finish the calibration. As
a result of these incidents, | found that Motiaase agted in an insolent

manner towards Bosch.

The relevant factors, | am required to consider, ar]:he nature of the

employer's business, the type of employment in whigh the employee is

engaged, the circumstances of the misconduct cImplained of, the
|

’Iationship to the

employment of the employee. The employee’s perscﬂiqal circumstances
]

proximity in time of the misconduct and its r

are aiso to be considered. ‘

|

The nature of the business of Lion Ferrochrome § that it is mining
operation which operates on a 7 day — 24 hour Lis. As correctly
submitted by Lion Ferrochrome's representatives, tiﬁis requires all the
employees to act as a cohesive unit in order to engure the success of

the mining operation.

i

It is clear from the evidence in the disciplinaryfhearing that Lion
Ferrochrome expects a high standard of its emp[?yees and wanton

misconduct will not be readily tolerated. !
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|
]
)
i
:
!

27. In considering the proximity and time of the miscoFﬁduct, as | have
indicated, previously, it should be noted that the first Eharge emanates
from the abandonment of the calibration procesgi and that the

subsequent acts of misconduct are related to this incigent.
!

|
28. A fundamental issue that | need to consider is whe !er | should give
Motlaase a second chance. The facts show thaff the miscongluct
committed by Motlaase was wilful, but | am not dpnvinced on the
evidence presented, that Lion Ferrochrome does [ fact find itself
unable to trust Motlaase in relation to the aspects of hhe job for which
he was employed. Put otherwise, | am not convincel, that taking into
consideration all the circumstances and the evidence |n the matter, that
the relationship has irretrievably broken down tofthe extent that

Motlaase’s services be terminated. |

Recommendation !

29. | recommend that a fair and appropriate sanction is jthat Motlaase he
given a final written warning. The employer is to declde the number of

points to be allocated as per the disciplinary code of Lyon Ferrochrome.

a/"f’/
7

A MOSAM |
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DIELETE WHICHEVER IS NOT AFPLICABLE

(1) AzPORTABLE(YESINO.
(2) OF INTEREST TO OTHER JUDGES.@/NO.

(3) REVISED. .~

o2 VL O 1
G2l L gsourcd
(HELD ATB

URT OF SOUTH AFRICiA
RAAMFONTEIN)

GOLD FIELDS MINING SOUTH AFRICA
(PTY) LTD (KLOOF GOLD MINE)

and

COMMISSION FOR CONCILIATION,
MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION

KEISHO N N.O.

THE NATIONAL UNION OF MINEWORKERS

SEHLOHO, M.N.

CASE NO: JR 2006/08

! Applicant
|

| First respondent

d
L

?econd respondent

i
Third respondent

 Fourth respondent

JUDGMENT
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[1]  This is an application brought in terms of s 158

;(1) (g) of the Labour

Relations Act (the LRA) to review and set aside 2 certiﬁcate issued by the

second respondent (the commissioner) on 8 Augu ,t 2008. In addition to

that relief, the applicant seeks an order subst

tutmgl' the certificate with an




(3]

[4]

[5]

order that the dispute remains unresolved and referring '!he dispute to this
court for adjudication.
in the certificate of outcome, the commissioner categ j?rised the dispute
referred to the CCMA by the fourth respondent as one rnlating to “reasons
unknown”, and indicated that should the dispute be pur#ued it ought to be
referred to the CCMA for arbitration. '

The facts that give rise to this application are undisp ted The applicant
employed the fourth respondent until his dismissal on 13 June 2008. The
applicant contends that the fourth respondent was di missed because of
his participation in what it alleges was an unprotecte;:{ strike. The fourth
respondent denies participating in the strike, and aversfthat he was absent
from work on the day of the strike on account of il Piealth. He contends
that he does not know the reason for his dismissal. |
E

On 8 July 2008, the fourth respondent referred a di spute to the CCMA,
using the prescribed LRA Form 7.11. He categoriseq the dispute as one
concerning an unfair dismissal and recorded in part f_*. of the form and In
response to the question "“Why were you dismissed?}, that the reason for

dismissal was unknown.

A conciliation meeting was held on 29 July 2008. EAt the meeting, the
applicant’s representative, a Mr Heathcote, ad}ised the presiding
commissioner that the dispute concerned a dismissjal for participation In
unprotected industrial action, and that should i“(he dispute remain
unresolved, the CCMA would not have jurisdiction to arbitrate as' s 191 (5)
(b)(iii) of the LRA required the dispute to be re‘ferred to this court.

Heathcote handed to the commissioner documents:relatmg to the fourth

respondent’s dismissal, in which the applicant :Ed recorded that the

reason for the fourth respondent's dismissal w his participation in

12
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8]

unprotected strike action. The fourth respondent hanied in a medical

certificate for the period of the industrial action. It was then agreed that the

thirty-day conciliation period be extended to provide the} applicant with an

opportunity {0 consider the certificate. On 7 August 2

;08. the applicant
advised the CCMA that the dispute could not be resolved, and requested
that effect. The

missal related to

the commissioner to issue a certificate of outcome
applicant reiterated that the fourth respondent's di
participation in an unprotected strike, and that the cedificate of outcome
should reflect that the dispute ought to be referreq to this court for
adjudication if the fourth respondent wished to pursue nis unfair dismissal

claim. i

On 8 August 2008, the commissioner issued a certificate of outcome. The
certificate records that the dispute was referred for ccfnci!iation on 7 July
2008, that the dispute concerned an unfair dismissal i’elating to “reasons
unknown”, that as at 8 August 2008 the dispute remair‘ed unresolved, and
that it could be referred to the CCMA for arbitration.

On 21 August 2008, the applicant launched an ap

certificate of outcome on the grounds that it containgd an obvious error.
The error that the commissioner was said to have perpetrated was to have
recorded a reason for dismissal that was factu :ILy incorrect. On 8
September 2008, the third respondent addressed letter to this court

stating that the matter should be referred to the € urt as the dismissal

wwas related to a protected strike” and that thg commissioner had

erroneously indicated that the matter related to unkn#f:wn reasons and that

it shouid be referred to arbitration.

The next day, 9 September 2008, the third respondey
to arbitration. On 8 October 2008. the third resporjdent filed a notice of

opposition and an answering affidavit fo the a

)
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(10]

The law ;

(1]

cedificate. At the time that the founding affidavit in the.siE proceedings was
t i

filed, no ruling had been made in respect of that applica

;on.

i

On 13 October 2008 the applicant’s attorneys wfote to the third

respondent’s attorney, placing on record the fact that tt third respondent

had admitted in writing that the dispute ought to be re
and requesting that the dispute before the CCMA be

rred to this cour,

withdrawn. . On 14

August 2008, the third respondent’'s attorney rep!iedE1 denying that the

fourth respondent was dismissed for participation in in

ustrial action, and

jurther denying that the certificate of outcome had}been erroneously

issued.

in these proceedings, the applicant contends that all of

the facts indicating

the true reason for the fourth respondent's dismissp} were before the

commissioner and that given the contents of the certifi

commissioner simply ignored and did not consider wh

she did not in fact determine the jurisdictional point ra

or she failed to apply her mind properly to what was
did not act as a reasonable commissioner would
words, a reasonable commissioner, so the applicant ¢
concluded on all of the facts

respondent’'s dismissal was his participation in an uf

ate of outcome, the
it was before her i.e.
ed by the applicant,

before her and thus

qgve acted. In other

»ntends, wauld have

that the true redson for the fourth

protected strike and

would have concluded further that the CCMA did nd:t have jurisdiction to

arbitrate the dispute.
i

The dispute resolution system established by the LiA places a premium

on congiliation. In broad terms, all dismissal disput

conciliation before proceeding to the stage of

L must be referred to

either arbitration or

adjudication. Whether a dispute is to be arbitrat >d by the CCMA or




[12]

[13]

adjudicated by this court depends on the reason for diqmissal. However,
when the reason for dismissal is itself the subject of ajdispute, the LRA
provides no clear guidance on how the dispute is to pe resolved. Two
broad approaches appear to have emerged. The firsf is to regard the
matter as one concerning jurisdiction, and to require a conciliating
commissioner to determine the dispute about the reas !an for dismissal at
the conciliation stage. On this approach, the certiﬁca&e of outcome (at
least in so far as it categorises a dispute and indicates Ithe forum to which
it should be referred) represents a jurisdictional rdiing. The second
approach is to attach no jurisdictional significance t¢ the certificate of

outcome, and to regard the certificate as no more thart a record that on a

particular date, a dispute referred to the CCMA particular terms

remained unresolved. On this approach, while a concill *ting commissioner
will normally indicate the nature of the dispute in the ¢ rtificate of outcome,
the categorisation or description of the dispute has{no bearing on the
future conduct of the proceedings. n particular, he forum for any
subsequent proceedings initiated by a referring pa is determined by
what the employee alleges the dispute to be, and irre ective of the terms

in which the certificate was completed.

in my view, for the reasons recorded below, the LR} clearly adopts the

latter approach. In other words, a certificate of oujcome has no legal
significance beyond 2 statement that the dispute re arred to conciliation

has been conciliated and was resolved or remained unresolved, as the

case may be. In so far as the pro forma certificate akes provision for a

commissioner to categorise the dispute and to in icate the means by

which or the forum in which it is ultimately to be regolved, these are not

functions contemplated by the Act, and they have no [egal significance.
Section 135 of the LRA regulates the resolution of disputes through

congciliation. in broad terms, the section requires aicommissioner to be

't




appointed to attempt 1o resolve a dispute referred to ttt CCMA within a
period of 30 days from the date on which the refer

Section 135 (5) provides:

al was received.

“when conciliation has failed, or at the end of thé 30-day period or
any further period agreed between the parties-

(a) the commissioner must issue &| certificate stating
whether or not the dispute hEs been resolved,
(emphasis added)

(b) the Commission must Serv ; a copy of that

certificate on each party to e dispute or the
person who represented a pa 1/ in the congciliation
proceedings, and
(c) the commissioner must file the original' of that

certificate with the Commissiort”

The subsection is curiously drafted. The preamble antigipates the failure of

the conciliation process and the lapse of the 30-da (or agreed further

period), but not the successful resolution of the refer d dispute. It seems

to me that two scenarios are contemplated. The first is that a conciliation

meeting is convened within the 30-day period and th the commissioner's
intervention fails to resolve the dispute. In this instange, the commissioner
must issue a certificate stating that the dispute rem Ein's unresolved. The
second scenario contemplates the expiry of the 30-qay period (or further
agreed period) with no conciliation meeting havfng been convened;
alternatively, the expiry of the 30-day period or any greed further period.

At that point, 8 conciliation meeting may have been chnvened (or' not), and

the dispute would have been resolved (or not) throfigh conciliation or by
any other means. In the first instance, the obligatior} to issue a certificate

is triggered by an event {the failure of a conciliatiori convened within the




30-day period); in the second instance, the obligation isjtriggered by the
effluxion of time (the expiry of the 30-day or agreed furthdr period).

. of the Act that

regulate the statutory dispute resolution process beyord the conciliation

[14] Section 135 (5), to the extent that it considers the issuiniof a certificate to

be mandatory, sits uncomfortably with those provision

stage. In the case of disputes about unfair dismissals]' section 191 (5)

provides: |

“if a council or a commissioner has certified} that the dispute

remains unresolved, or if 30 days have expired jsince the council
or the Commission received the referral Bnd the dispute
remains unresolved- !
(a} the council or the Commission must afbitrate the dispute
at the request of the employee if:
(i) the employee has alleged thht the reason for
dismissal is related to the emppyee’s conduct or
capacity, unless paragraph (b) (iii) gpplies. .
(i) the employee does not kncfw

the reason for
dismissal..
(b) the employee may refer the dispute p the Labour Court
for adjudication if the employee has| alleged that the
reason for dismissal is - '
(i} automatically unfair,

(ii) based on the employers opera ional requirements:

" \n the context of strikes and lock-outs, s 64(1) (a) (i} and (ii) mpose one of the procedural
constraints on the exercise of those rights that “a certificate stating that the dispute remans
unresolved has been issued _"or“a perod of 30 days, or any extensiorfof that period agreed to
between the parties to the dispute. has elapsed since the referral was rgceived by the council or
the Commission:..." If there is 8 dispute about the categorisation of the flispute that gives rise 1o
the industrial action (and in particular whether the dispute 1s one lawifully pable of resoiution by
industrial action) this would normally be resolved by this court in an agplication to interdict the
industrial action concerned. :
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(ili) the employee's participation In ‘l strike that does
not comply with the provisions off Chapter Ve 37

(emphasis added). t

This wording clearly contemplates that if 30 days havejelapsed from the

date on which the CCMA received the referral of the dgpute, the dispute
may be referred to arbitration or to this court for adj iication without a
certificate of outcome, or, as Freund AJ put it in | Seeff Residential
Properties v Mbhele NO & others (2008) 27 ILJ 1940 [LC), "... even if a
certificate of outcome has not been issued, arbitration fermains mandatory
if 30 days have expired since the council or the com ssion received the
referral and if the employee requires this." (at 1946A)} In this sense, the
legal effect of a certificate of outcome is therefore minfmal, if there is any

effect at all. His a misconception to suggest therefore, as the appiicant

does in these proceedings, that a party is entitled to !. ecure, whether by
way of an application to vary or an application for revigw, that a certificate
is cast in particular terms as 10 the nature of the dispute or the ultimate
destination of the dispute in the statutory dispute resol§tion scheme.

The wording of s 191(5) also contemplates that it is ng t for the conciliating
commissioner to interrogate the nature of the dispute fas it appears on the
referral form or make any ruling as to the forum to Which an unresolved

dispute may ultimately be referred. An employee if entitled to refer a

dispute to this court or require that a dispute be arbi‘ated on the basis of
the reason for dismissal alleged by the employee. it i the referring party's
categorisation of the dispute {and nothing more) thpt triggers either the
arbitration or the adjudication of the dispute. To the e‘xtent that it can be
said that an arbitrator or this court assumes jurisdictin upon the referral of
a matter, the Labour Appeal Court has described this as a “provisional
Mouldings (Pty) Ltd

(2007) 28 ILJ 1042 (LAC), the LAC held that in relajon to referrals to this

assumption of jurisdiction”. in Wardlaw v Suprem




court, the Act contemplated a situation where this cout initially takes as

correct the referring party's allegation of the reason

proceeds to hear the matter. If it becomes apparent
that the reason for dismissal is in fact a reason that in tejms of s 191(5} (a)
required that the dispute be referred to arbitration,
required to deal with the matter in terms of s 158(2) eifn
proceedings and referring the matter o arbitration ] or by sitting as
arbitrator with the parties’ consent. The LAC summa¥ised the point as

follows:

“In the light of the above, it seems to us tHat the employees
allegation of the reason for dismissal as contenplated by s 191 (5)

is only important for the purposé of determining where the dispute

should be referred after conciliation but the fgrum to which it is

referred at that stage is not necessarily tHe forum that has
jurisdiction to finally resolve the dispute on th ;. merits. That may
depend on whether it does not later appear fhat the reason for
dismissal is another one other than the ohe alleged by the
employee and is one that dictates that fnother forum has
jurisdiction to resolve the dispute on the meritsf (at para [24) of the

judgment).

Although the Wardlaw decision dealt with a matter feferred to this court
that the employer party contended ought to have been referred to
arbitration (the converse is the case in the present inptance), the principle
to be applied is that jurisdiction is conferred orf the CCMA, on a
provisional basis, by the referring party’s categorisatjon of the reason for

dismissal. ®

who find themselves in a position where the reason for dismissai appedfs o be one in respect of

2 There is no equivalent to s 158(2) n reiation to arbitration proceedirfgs. It seems that parties
which the CCMA does not have jurisdiction, the arbitration proceedir{s ought to be stayed to




[16] A recent judgment of the Constitutional Court supportsf this approach. in

[17]

require a commissioner at the conciliation phase to
ruling based on the reason for dismissal that the refIing party asserts. It

is the referring party's right to frame an unfair dismi

"A commissioner must, as the LRA requiep

CUSA v Tao Ying Metal Industries & others [2009] 1 BLLR 1 (CC), the
majority of the court (per Ngcobo J) held:

“deal with the

substantial merits of the dispute”. This can only be done by

ascertaining the real dispute between the partie}. In deciding what

the real dispute between the parties I1s, @ €gQ mmissioner 1s not

necessarily bound by what the legal representatidzes say the dispute

is. The labels that parties aftach fo a dispute|cannot change its

underlying nature. A commissioner is required f take all the facts
i

into consideration including the description 0

he nature of the

dispute, the outcome requested by the unio and the evidence

presented during the arbitration. What must be fome in mind is that

there is no provision for pleadings in the arbitrition process which

helps to define disputes in civil litigation. Indeed, the material that a

commissioner will have prior to a hearing will[consist of standard

forms which record the nature of the dispule and the desired

ouicome. The informal nature of the arbitratit;ﬂ process permits a

commissioner to determine what the real

spute between the

parties is on & consideration of all the facts. THe dispute between

the parties may only emerge once all the
para 66 of the judgment, emphasis added).

evidence is in” (at

There is another reason why the Act should not be in{erpreted to permit or

make a jurisdictional

al claim in any way

permit a referral to the Labour Court. Alternatively, the parties may a?ree to continue with the

arbitration — see s 141(1}

10




that he or she deems fit, and it is not for the comjmissioner {or the
employer) to decide for that party how the claim should pe formulated and
in which forum the relief sought is to be pursued. In National Union of
Metal Workers of SA & others v Driveline Technolggies (Pty) Ltd &
another (2000) 21 /LJ 142 (LAC), Zondo AJP (as he thgn was) expressed

the principle in the following way:

“A commissioner who conciliates a dispute is fot called upon to

whether the dismissal is due to operational
misconduct or incapacity, does not affect his juisdictfon. It is also
not, for example, the conciliating commissionef to whom the Act
the Labour Court.

That right is given to the dismissed employee. ($ee 5191 (5) (b)). If

gives the power to refer a dismissal dispute (o}

the employee, and not the conciliating commissjoner, has the right
then should the

ldescription of the

to refer the dispute to the Labour Court, wh
employee be bound by the commissioners
dispute?”

[18] In Ingo Strautmann v Silver Meadows Trading 99 (Ptﬂ) Ltd t/a Mugg and
Bean Suncoast (unreported, D412/07), | recentlyj had occasion to

summarise the legal position in these terms:

“it follows that when a commissioner complefes Form 7.12 and
categorises the dispute referred to the CCMA By ticking one of the
boxes provided, the commissioner does not njake a jurisdictional
ruling. Nor does the ticking of any of the boles marked “CCMA
arbitration”. “Labour Court” “None" or “Strike/L Ickout" amount to a
rufing on which of those courses of action must be pursued by a
referring party. Consistent with the principle} established in the

11




[19]

(20]

driveline case, It is not for commissioners, by mqans of certificates

of outcome or otherwise, to dictate to litigant§ either how they

should frame the disputes that they might wish o pursue or which
forum they are obliged to approach {0 ha those disputes
determined. Litigants must stand and fall by t - claims that they
bring to arbitration. They run the risk that dufing the arbitration
proceedings, a commissioner might decide, in terms of Rule 22 of
the CCMA Rules, that a referring party should bp required to prove
that the commission has jurisdiction to arbitratd the dispute. (This
assumes, of course, that the issue giving rise to the jurisdictional
point has not previously been the subject of a ruling by a

commissioner, either at the commencement jof the conciliation

phase or at any time thereafter) if a refgrring party ought
reasonably to have foreseen that the reasof for the dfsputed
dismissal or a reason that contributed significgntly to it was such
that the dispute ought to have been referred tq 'this court, there is
no reason why an order for costs should not qb made in terms of
Rule 39(1) of the CCMA Rules in respect of g jurisdictional ruling
made against that party.”

To the extent that the applicant's case rests on thef contention that the

commissioner had before her a jurisdictional point thagshe was required In
terms of CCMA rule 14 to decide or that she failed prperly to decide, this

application stands to be dismissed on the reasoning afticulated above.

In general terms, it seems o me that despite the jvording of Rule 14,
jurisdictional points are better determined after the {hearing of evidence
(and subject to the commissioner's direction) at they arbitration ‘phase in
terms of rule 22 of the CCMA Rules. This is particflarly so in regard to
points such as whether the referring party was an * rpployee" as defined

by s 213, or was «dismissed” for the purposes of s 1§6. In practical terms,

l")




[21]

the only jurisdictional points that appear to be

relevant at the

commencement of the conciliation phase are those thdt relate to the time

limits for the referral of disputes to conciliation that
(where there is no application for condonation for

whether a bargaining council has jurisdiction over

dispute {in the absence of any exercise of the discre

147), and perhaps whether on the face of it, the dil

conciliation is not one that is contemplated by the

concerns a matter other than a matter of mutu

he Act prescribes
3 late referral), or

the parties to the

ion conferred by s

!pute referred for
jct, ie. the dispute
interest between

e (especially those

employer and employee. To permit other points in h’mi

that relate to employment status and the existence o a dismissal) fo be
raised at the conciliation phase and to require them b be determined in
terms of Rule 14 at that stage frustrates an impritant purpose that
underiies the Act (i.e. that disputes shouid be resolvef expeditiously with
the minimum of formality) and potentially opens tife door to muitiple

jurisdictional challenges and piecemeal applications fof review.

in summary: despite the initial indication that the NU accepted that the
dispute should be categorised as a dismissal for pagticipation in a strike
and that the matter shouid be referred to the Labour[Court, the third and

fourth respondents have, in their opposition to thisf application, clearly

indicated a contrary intention. They wish the dispute
respondent's dismissal determined on the basis that

leave on the day of the strike, he does not know the

oncerning the third
naving been on sick

aason for dismissal.

They wish their dispute to be arbitrated in the CCMJ[\. The case brought

by the third and fourth respondents must stand or f

certificate issued by the commissioner has no legal

stating that as at 8 August 2008, a dispute concerni

| on that basis. The
significance beyond

g the alleged unfair

dismissal of the third respondent referred to the CEMA for conciliation,

remained unresolved. It is common cause that to this

axtent, the certificate

correctly states the facts. Whatever further indicatiops the commissioner




gave as to the nature of the dispute or the forum in[vhich it should be

determined, are of no legal significance or consequence.

[22] There is therefore no basis on which the comnjissioner's conduct
constituted a reviewable irregularity, nor is there fany basis for the
certificate of outcome to be reviewed and set aside. This application must
accordingly fail. There is no reason why costs should rjot follow the resulit.

| make the following order:

1. The application is dismissed, with costs

L_»—"/

ANDRE VAN NIEKERK
JUDGE OF THE LABOUR COURT

Date of hearing: 17 June 2009.
Date of judgment: 03 July 2009.

Appearances:

For the applicant: Adv L Hollander
Instructed by: Leppan Beech Inc.

For the respondent: Adv LM Malan
Instructed by: CN Phukubje Attorneys.
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[1]

The Facts

The appellant, Mr George Miyambo (‘Miyambo

No. 0627 P

2

), with the leave

of the court a quo, appeals against the judgment nd order handed

down by the Labour Court. Jammy AJ reviewed

and set aside the

award made by the Second Respondent (‘the Commissioner’) and
substituted the award with an order that the dismjssal of Miyambo
by the Third Respondent, Pretoria Portland Qement Company

Limited (‘the Company’) was procedurally

d substantively

justified and fair and ordered Miyambo to pay the Company’s

costs. The Commissioner had found that

e dismissal of

Miyambo was unfair because a fair reason for Hismissal had not

been proved by the Company. Accordingly]

reinstated to his former position with the Compang.

Miyambo was

Miyambo was employed by the Company on 3D April 1982 and

had at the time of his dismissal a clean record

On 12 Qcrober

2007, whilst Miyambo was on the night shift dufy, he found scrap
metal which had been thrown into a skip. He Was at a]l material

times aware that the scrap metal was not going tp be thrown away
but rather that it would be sold by the Company. Miyambo decided
to help himself to the scrap metal with the aim df fixing his stove.

After he had finished his duty a security guard, \1h0 was on duty at

the Company’s pedestrian gate, found a few pie

in Miyambo’s bag during a routine search. According to Company

es of scrap metal

policy, a clearance permit or ‘pass-out’ is requirgd for the removal

of company property. This fact was well kmpwn to Miyambo

because he had on previous occasions obtained{the permission of

-
4
4
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The Arbitration
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the Company when he removed property bplonging to the

company.

Miyambo could not produce the necessary pass-gut allowing him

to remove the scrap metal. On 16 October he was

suspended from

his duties and handed a notice to attend a disc plinary enquiry.

Miyambo was at a subsequent disciplinary enqury charged with

theft of scrap metal and found guilty, A recd

mmendation of

dismissal was made by the chairperson of the dis¢iplinary enquiry

and the Company adopted the recommendatior

Miyambo. His subsequent appeal was unsuccessful.

(4]

The Labour Court

Miyambo referred an unfair dismissal dispute to
for Conciliation,

Conciliation was unsuccessful and the dispute

and dismissed

the Commission
Mediation and Arbitratipn  (‘CCMA").

was arbitrated

before the Commissioner. The Commissioner found that Miyambo

was guilty of theft of scrap from the waste bin. Thé

Commissijoner,

however found that the sanction of dismissal was unduly harsh and

unfair. The Commissioner ordered the Compa;

1y 10 reinstate

Miyambo with retrospective effect to the date

ot his dismi'ssal,
without forfeiture of any benefits that accrued to |hi had he not

been dismissed, save that he was not to recejve any back pay. The

Commissioner substituted the dismissal with a sarjction of a final

written warning valid for one (1) year.

No. 0627 P,

4
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[5]  Subsequent to the award, the Company approached the court «
quo to have the award reviewed and set aside in {erms of s145 of
the Labour Relations Act 66 of 1995 (‘the Act). The Labour Court
found that the conclusions drawn by the Commigsioner were not
rational because they were irreconcilable with his [factual findings.
The Court did not refer to Carephone (Pty) Ltd y Marcus NO &
others [1998] 11 BLLR 1093 (LAC), which is uthority for the

proposition that a commissioner exceeds his or powers if the

arbitration award is not justifiable in relation to the reasons given

forit.

[6]) The court a guo noted that the Commissioner ma:*e two important
factual findings. The first is extracted from the Commissioner’s

award:

‘4.2.1 In the present matter the employee gave 3 contradictory
explanations regarding his failure to obtain the pass-out for the
scrap metal in question, viz:

4.2.1.1  onthe day of the incident (12 October 2007) he told

the security guard (Ngcobo) that he had forgptten to geta pass-
out;

42.1.2  athis disciplinary hearing, the employee claifped that

he did not get a pass-out since his suparvisor was not present;

42.13  during the Arbitration he argued that he nevet

believed that he even required the pass-out ﬂor the scrap metal
10 question.’




4. dun,

W Te:4Y

7

The

[8]

]

The other finding was that Miyambo knew he

had to obtain a

‘pass-out’ before he could remove the scrap metai. Consequently,

the Commissioner was ‘satisfied’ that Miyambo wi

s guilty of theft.

The court a quo also noted that despite

Commissioner concluded that dismissal was inap
a continued employment relationship would nof
Jammy AJ held that this &ecision was not one t

deciston-maker could have reached.

eal

is finding the
riate and that
be intolerable.

nat a reasonable

Before us it was conceded that Miyambo was propgrly convicted of

theft by the Commissioner and that procedural faij

issue. However counsel for Miyambo submitted t

mess was not an
nat although the

Company’s Disciplinary Code provided for dism.'rsal for theft, it

also provided for a final warning. He further co

Company failed to prove that it always imposed

dismissal for theft. It should have imposed a final

‘tended that the
the sanction of

warning instead

of dismissal in light of his long service and clean rdcord.

It was also submitted that on previous occasion

} Miyambo had

been allowed to remove the Company’s scrap qetal and it was

likely that he would have been permitted to removg the scrap metal

had he requested permission. Counsel proceeded to draw a

No. 0627 P,

0
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[10]

[11]

[i2]

No. 0627 P. 7

6

distinction between theft in the “technical sense’, Ivhich he defines

as the absence of prior permission or unauthorise

theft in the ‘strict sense’. According to counsel

possession, and

. Miyambo was

guilty of the former. Counsel also submitted that the present matter
was distinguishable from cases dealing with ‘outright theft’.

Counsel acting on behalf of the Company,
Miyambo’s dishonesty destroyed the trust rela

submitted that
ionship. In this

regard it was submitted that Miyamho providkd contradictory

explanations for unauthorised removal of the scray

no attempt to comply with the Company’s rule

metal and made
despite knowing

about it. A reasonable commissioner could not hq'\re arrived at the

same result as the Commissioner.,

It was also argued on behalf of the Company |

hat it applied a

consistent zero tolerance policy. In the present matter, corrective

discipline would have achieved nothing in li
persistent denial of any wrong doing. Miyambo
he did not need a pass-out despite knowing the
militated against a reinstatement. It was argued

of Miyambo's
adamant that

e, which further
further that the

Company was under an obligation to apply the disciplinary rules

consistently.

The leading authority on the standard of revie
awards is Sidumo & Another v Rustenburg Platin
others [2007] 12 BLLR 1097 (CC). At para

explained the duties of a commissioner as follows:

W of arbitration
ym Mines Ltd &
79, Navsa Al
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[13]

[14] In Shoprite Checkers (Pty) Ltd v CCMA & others]

L

49

Navsa AT proceeded to frame the question for

No. 0627 P.

‘In terms of the LR4, a commissioner has to cllItermine whether a

dismissal is fair or not. A commissioner is not given

e power to consider

afresh what he or she would do, but simply to decide whether what the

employer did was fair. In arriving at a decision a ]ommissioncr 18 not

required to defer to the decision of the employer,
he or she must consider all relevant circumstances.’

{ is required is that

determination as

follows: ‘[s the decision reached by the commissioner one that 2

reasonable decision-maker could not reach?

It is appropriate to pause and reflect on the role th

t trust plays in

the employment relationship. Business risk is predominantly based

on the trustworthiness of company employees.

of individual breaches of trust has signif
repercussions. A successful business enterprise

basis of trust. In De Beers Consolidated Mines

e accumulation

icant economic

operates on the
Ltd v CCMA &

others [2000] 9 BLLR. 995 (LAC) para 22, the colurt, per Conradie

JA, held the following regarding risk management

vengeance. It is, or should be, a sensible operatio

response to risk

‘Dismissal is not an expression of moral outrage; mu;LIess 1s it an act of

magagement in the particular enterprise. That is why
packers who steal small items are routinely dismissed.

 supermarket shelf
FTheir dismissal has

lile to do with society’s moral opprobrium of a ninor thefl; it has

everything to do with the operational requirements
enterprise.’

of the emplbyer’s

[2008] 9 BLLR

838 (LAC) para 21 the court quoted this dictum vith approval. In

Shoprite, the employee consumed company property without

U
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paying for it. The court held that the employee’s difmissal was fair

as the company’s rules had been implemented] for justifiable

operational reasons.

[15] In Toyota SA Motors (Pty) Ltd v Radebe and gthers [2000] 3
BLLR 243 (LAC) paralS Zondo AJP (as he then ws) stated;

‘Although a long period of service of an employeq will usually be a
mitigating factor where such employee is guilty qf misconduct, the
point must be made that there are certain acts of midconduct which are
of such a serious nature that no length of service car save an employee
who is guilty of them from dismissal. To my mindjone such clear act
of misconduct is gross dishonesty.’

[16] In Hulett Aluminium (Pty) Ltd v Bargaining Countil for the Metal
Industry & others [2008) 3 BLLR 241 (LC) the Jcompany had a
policy allowing its employees to purchase scrap p&oducts from it.
The employee did not comply with the specifid procedure and
dispatched a sealed box containing company proprérty. At para 42
Molahlehi J held:

“...the presence of dishonesty tilts the scales to an gxtent that even the
strongest mitigating factors, like long service and{a clean record of
discipline are likely to have minimal impact on fhe sanction to be

imposed. In other words whatever the amount pf mitigation, the

relationship is unlikely to be restored once dighonesty has been
established in particular in a case where the erpployee shows no
remorse. The reason for this is that there is a high premium placed on
honesty because conduct that mvolves corruption{by the employees
damages the trust relationship which underpins ¢he essence of the
employment relationship.’
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[17] It is clear from the above authority that our courts place a high

(18]

119

premium on honesty in the workplace. Miyabo gave three
different versions as to why he was not in possessipn of a pass-out.
He showed no remorse despite having made an parlier statement
saying he was sorrv and admitting guilt. Before fhe arbitrator he
did a complete volte face and stated that he did no} need a pass out
for the scrap metal. This was inconsistent with rjot only what he
had said previously but also with what he had |done previously
when taking out the Company’s property which hayd no commercial
value to the Company. He was aware that the 1.l?['lcrap metal was

being sold by the Company and to that extent it had 2 commercial

value to the Company.

It was also argued on behalf of Miyambo that Re did not really
intend to steal the scrap metal since he was carrying it in a bag. The
guard at the pedestrian gate would have easily disqovered the scrap
metal if he had searched Miyambo. In my {view this is a

makeweight argument. The discovery vel non whs dependant on
the vigilance of the guard. In any event if Mivam¥o did not intend
to steal, he mero motu, could have gone up t4 the guard and
informed him that he had scrap metal without the necessary pass-
out and that he would furnish one later. Instead jhe informed the
guard that he had forgotten to get a pass-out.

It is appropriate to return to the submission made by counsel on
behalf of Miyambo that the above case law, which, in his opinion,
mnvolves ‘outright theft and/or dishonesty’, is dist nguishable from

the present matter which involves theft in the ‘tefhnical sense’ in

1
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[20]

[21]

that there was absence of prior permission
possession. [ do not agree with this argument.

distinction and undermines conceptual clarity.

10
or unauthorised
't 1S an artificial
In Rustenburg

Platinum Mines Ltd (Rustenburg Section) v NUM|& Others {2001]
3 BLLR 305 (LAC) the employee was charg¢d with theft or

unauthorised possession of company property,

meatballs, and was dismissed. The commissioner

namely cooked

In his award held

that the dismissal was fair. The Labour Appeal Court held that it

was clear that the commissioner had failed th appreciate the
difference between theft and attempted theft in j;at the latter was

“mildly” less heinous than theft and set the awar

this court paid short shrift to this distinction and

aside. On appeal
held that it was

clear that the commissioner had found the employee guilty of

misconduct and dismissal was therefore justifiabld

I must add that counsel for Miyambo also equated thefi in the

‘technical sense’ with negligence, which adds yet another

dimension to an already complex minefield of di

tinctions. To my

mind, a disciplinary procedure that draws sybtle distinctions

between degrees of theft, and likens the lesser or
theft to negligence, is impractical.

techmcal’ sort of

Miyambo undoubtedly breached the relationship| of trust built up

over many years of honest service. The Company had a congistent
policy of zero tolerance for theft and this Had been clearly
conveyed to all the employees including Miyambg. [ agree with the
Labour Court’s ruling that the Commissioner’y award was not

justifiable in relation to the reasons given for it. (n the basis of the

No. 0627 P.

11
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factual findings made by the Commissioner, the

Appellant was justified for operational reasons and

No. Uoss  F,

11

dismissal of the

was fair.

[22] I now turn to the question of costs. Miyambo was armed with an

award in his favour from the Commissioner.

In light of the

judgment in Sidumo (supra) it was not unreasonale for Miyambo

to consider that he had prospects of success on ap
justice would be best served if each party was o
own costs on appeal.

Order

[23] Taccordingly make the following order:

(i) The appeal is dismissed.

peal. In my view

rdered to pay its

(i) Each party is ordered to pay its own costs dccasioned by the

appeal

/

PATEL JA

1 agree

< 0l

McCALL AJA ( -

)
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